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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at Fanling Room, Lower Level 1, Kowloon Shangri-
La, 64 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 17th June, 2008 at

3:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Accounts, the Directors’ Report and
the Independent Joint Auditors’ Report for the year ended 31st
December, 2007;

2. To declare a final dividend;

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their

remuneration;

4. To appoint Joint Auditors and to authorise the Board of Directors to

fix their remuneration;

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT there be granted to the Directors an unconditional general
mandate to issue, allot and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company, and to make or grant offers, agreements and options

in respect thereof, subject to the following conditions:

(A) such mandate shall not extend beyond the Relevant Period (as
defined below) save that the Directors may during the Relevant
Period make or grant offers, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such powers after the end of the

Relevant Period;
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(B)

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company
allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as defined below),
(i) the exercise of rights of subscription or conversion under the
terms of any warrants issued by the Company, or any securities
which are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company, and
(iii) any employee share option scheme or similar arrangement
for the time being adopted for the grant or issue to officers
and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company, shall not
exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the
share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing of

this resolution;

such mandate shall be additional to the authority given to the
Directors at any time to allot and issue additional shares in the
capital of the Company arising from the exercise of subscription
rights under any warrants or the exercise of any options under

any employee share option scheme of the Company; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

"Relevant Period” means the period from the date of passing of

this resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the

Company; or
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(i) EBAQAR A ARMAIKE (i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual
REBRBZEORE AR general meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-
AITERRBFAXESETH laws of the Company or any applicable law of Bermuda to
2 BREmZ B ¢ 3 be held; or

@iy RABBRABREAG LR (i) the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary
BEBRBRRBIEIEITR resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general
REBEREZH meeting.

[BLEFTAR | IBESRIET A - “Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed

RIFRME - MRETREEH A by the Directors made to holders of the shares and/or warrants

TIARR R R A R RREEEE on, as the case may be, the Register of Members and the

A2 R B,/ R IR E Register of Warrantholders of the Company on a fixed record

BA RESERMFZERD date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares and/

R/ SRR 2 L hlEEE or warrants (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements

ERMD(EESRAVBEIBEER as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation

AR EHROREEBRETBEXE to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions

BAIMERIM R BEAR AR R ZIE or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any

B2 ARSI B F S EARAE recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, or in any

W B SERB R RS2 R E %R territory outside, Hong Kong).”

M EGHE T BRIt 77 T 2 #EA 3
TEHE M ZHE) ©

AESEEMD By Order of the Board
KeE Chu Kam Lin, Iris
NEHE Company Secretary
/A ZEZEN\FOA=T+ A Hong Kong, 29th April, 2008

6 TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH
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Any member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy

need not be a member of the Company.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons
may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such share
as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one such joint holders be
present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so
present whose name stands first on the Register of Members in respect of such

share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

The form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority
must be deposited at the principal office of the Company at Wong's Industrial
Centre, 180A Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned

meeting.

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 11th June, 2008
to Tuesday, 17th June, 2008, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the above dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars, Tricor Standard Limited,
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 10th June, 2008.

Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected and the procedures by which
members may demand a poll are set out in the Explanatory Notes to the Notice
of Annual General Meeting, which will be dispatched to the members together

with the 2007 Annual Report.
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DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share (2006:
HK$0.02) for 2007. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.02 (2006: HK$0.03) per share on Friday, 27th June, 2008
to the shareholders on the Register of Members on Tuesday, 17th June,
2008.

The Register of Members will be closed from Wednesday, 11th June, 2008
to Tuesday, 17th June, 2008, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the above dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrars, Tricor Standard
Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 10th June,
2008.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The Group

Sales revenue of the Group decreased 9.4% from HK$3.71 billion in
2006 to HK$3.36 billion in 2007. The decrease in sales revenue was
primarily due to reduced demand from existing customers in the Electronic
Manufacturing Service Division (the “EMS Division™).

Profit before taxation of the Group increased 4.7% from HK$78.26 million
in 2006 to HK$81.95 million in 2007. However, excluding the gain from
the increase in fair value of investment properties, profit before taxation
would have decreased 32.6% to HK$50.5 million in 2007. The decrease in
profit was primarily due to a decline in sales revenue and the increases in
staff costs for the EMS Division in 2007.
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The EMS Division

The sales revenue of our factory in Shajing, Shenzhen fell 10.4% compared
with 2006. Sales revenue in our factory in Suzhou increased by 18.9% in
2007 compared with 2006. To cope with the growth of the customer base
for our Suzhou factory, we are building a new extension to our Suzhou
factory, which is expected to be completed in the second half of 2008. The
new extension will add 13,000 square meters to our Suzhou factory, with
a combined area of 25,000 square meters.

Competition for the EMS business remains intense. We have continued to
experience pricing pressure from our customers. In addition, the operating
expenses related to salaries and wages, solder and chemical consumption,
and continued appreciation of the Renminbi have made the operating
environment of the EMS Division increasingly difficult. In order to maintain
satisfactory operating income, the EMS Division will continue to streamline
the production and implement costs control in both manufacturing
and administration. In 2007, the Group has committed to purchase an
industrial land in Hanoi, Vietnam which we expect to build a new factory
and start production in early 2009.

The ODM Division

The Original Design and Marketing Division (the “ODM Division”)
continued its focus on the development and marketing of RFID (radio
frequency identification) products during 2007. Total sales revenue of the
ODM Division increased by 50% from HK$3.4 million in 2006 to HK$5.1
million in 2007 and it is expected that the sales revenue will continue to
increase in 2008.

In 2007, the ODM Division continued to sign up with new customers
to develop RFID products for new areas of application such as payment
terminals, oil refinery, on-field service for vending machines and smart
card payment systems. It has become one of the leading companies in the
world to provide a low cost, flexible and wireless reader solution to the RFID
industry. The Group believed that it would be a valuable asset to the Group
in the long term.
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Property development

With respect to the residential development in the mid-levels (“the
Project”), the Project has sold 14 residential units in 2007, realising total
gross sales proceeds of HK$126 million. As at 31st December, 2007,
5 residential units (including 4 duplexes and 1 combined unit) and 65
parking spaces remain unsold. If the current high demand in the high-
end residential property market persists, we expect to sell all remaining
residential units in 2008.

FINANCE

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group had net bank borrowings of about
HK$20.6 million (2006: HK$219.8 million), representing 2.8% (2006:
32.5%) of the shareholders’ equity at that date.

Most of the Group's sales are conducted in US dollars and costs and
expenses are mainly in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese Yen
and Renminbi. Forward contracts are used to hedge foreign exchange
exposures where necessary or practicable.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the Group,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group employed approximately 6,700
employees of whom approximately 5,700 were production workers. In
addition to the provision of annual bonuses, medical and life insurance,
discretionary bonuses are also available to employees based on individual
performance. The remuneration packages and policies are reviewed
periodically.

The Group also provides in-house and external training programs to its
employees.
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PROSPECTS

Based on the level of orders received and forecasts provided by customers,
the Directors expect that the sales of the EMS Division will continue to be
flat during the first half of 2008. We are also cautious about the general
business and economic outlook of the United States market which could
affect the demand on our services.

With respect to the ODM Division, we expect the sales will continue to
increase in 2008 due to increasing orders from new customers. It is the
Directors’ target to achieve break-even in terms of cash flow in 2008.

On behalf of the Directors, | would like to sincerely thank our customers,
suppliers and business partners for their continued confidence in and
support to the Group. | would also like to pay a special tribute to all of our
employees for their loyal, diligent and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15th April, 2008
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Five-Year Financial Summary

2004
BT
2007 2006 2005 HK$'000 2003
BET T BT BETT (EWEY) BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 (Restated) HK$'000
4 Results
= Turnover 3,363,777 3,713,784 2,763,674 2,522,163 2,220,387
BEEM Profit from operations 108,945 112,152 78,003 40,205 47,975
BE KA Finance costs (22,850) (26,867) (21,143) (9,152) (10,481)
HHE—FM B T  Gain on disposal of a
2 Was subsidiary / write off
—HEEBEEN B of a deregistered
NG] subsidiary 345 - - 578 -
=y ] Loss on disposal of
Rz 2 1R interests in associates - - (378) - -
— g A R] Impairment loss recognised
ZEBZE in respect of goodwill
WRREEE of an associate (1,990) - - - -
Him&EzE Impairment loss recognised
HERBERE in respect of other
investments (3.104) - - - -
PRFIHEEZ Impairment loss recognised
BEEHER in respect of asset
REREE classified as held for sale - (8,795) - - -
FE(REE N A Share of results of
ES associates 2,299 2,526 (1,622) (1,166) 6,994
H—EE R A Impairment loss recognised
BERRERE in respect of an associate - - - (6,264) -
B F—H Write back of allowance
T El/NCTI= 6 for loan advanced
Bz OB to an associate - - - 10,000 2,589
BT Allowance for loans
i /NE advanced to
B B associates - - - - (14,785)
FREXAER( Impairment loss recognised
ERERRE in respect of development
fE518 costs capitalised (1,696) (753) (4,639) - -
B 5t AT A Profit before taxation 81,949 78,263 50,221 34,201 32,292
I8 Taxation (11,081) (16,320) (18,770) (5,580) (9,157)
REE @ Profit for the year 70,868 61,943 31,451 28,621 23,135
LATRIEE M - Attributable to:
RNAEIRGOFEEA Equity holders of the
Company 70,868 61,943 31,455 28,672 24,903
DEIRR R Minority interests - - (4) (51) (1,768)
70,868 61,943 31,451 28,621 23,135
EERAE Assets and liabilities
BEE Total assets 1,679,492 1,910,546 1,686,979 1,767,873 1,600,950
RSN Total liabilities 941,216 1,235,097 1,057,169 1,163,168 992,949
LEIR R Minority interests - 345 345 349 -

WONG'S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007
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Financial Highlights

=E S

Turnover
BEHET  HKS million

4,000 -

3,714

3,000

2,000

1,000

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

REERREE
Total Assets and Total Liabilities
BEHEITT HKS$ million

2,000
1,911
I~
1,768*
./. 1,687 1,679
1,500 |- 1,601
\M,ZBS
1000 - 1,163
993 1,057
941
500 |-
o J

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

W EBE  Total Assets
B @& Total Liabilities

* @25 Restated

14  zeam@mswnas m —zzss

BRIREEF
Profit after Tax
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The Directors present their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2007 which were
approved by them at the board meeting held on the date of this report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as a holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the development, manufacture, marketing and distribution
of electronic products, including micro-computers, telecommunication
equipment, broadband communication products, internet appliances,
wireless communication or networking equipment and other electronic
products.

Substantially all of the turnover and operating profit of the Group are
derived from the manufacture of electronic products for electronic
manufacturing service customers.

ACCOUNTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and the state of affairs
of the Group as at 31st December, 2007 are set out on pages 45 to 124 of
this Annual Report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit by principal

activity and geographical area of operations are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and now recommend a
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st December, 2007 as follows:

BT T

HK$°000

EIREHERS - SRR 0.017T Interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share paid 4,669
BRAHIAR B - B AE0.02 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.02 per share in issue 9,339
14,008
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s largest
suppliers and customers are as follows:

BAE
%

REEsE Purchases
—RAHER — the largest supplier 7.71
—hAHERaHE — five largest suppliers combined 17.00

HERE Sales

—BAEP — the largest customer 33.71
—RAAREFPAHTE — five largest customers combined 74.02

BER  EHBMBATIBR(GESHAIES
ARRBIPA 5% A L) RAF E AR R H#
A DR SRS 2

hEMBHE

REBBRERAFZEE  BENBERIIR
8138 -

MR R BE R RFE

FEWB AR MEE QR FEED BITIERER
BB HREMTEI7 X 18 ¢

L@

REE 2 RAEBERTIENEGRE M ERE
Bg5E30 ©

EA]
AEEHEBEZEHBRTIERAFRE 47

Ho

ARBREEBAME DR FRRE 2 FEE(ZE
REQNAVERANARZHRIFTHRERE ) 8975
% 490,599,000 7T ° 14N + AR E] 2 R iE
B0 AR AT IR 7 R3S ©

1 6 TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH

No directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) were
interested at any time during the year in the above suppliers or customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five years are
summarised on page 13.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes
37 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves during the year are set out on page 47 of this
Annual Report.

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to the shareholders,
as calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the Bye-laws of
the Company, as at the balance sheet date amounted to approximately
HK$490,599,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium may be
distributed in the form of fully-paid bonus shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of shares which are imposed
by the Company’s Bye-laws or Bermuda law.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in book values of property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes during the
year amounted to HK$120,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny

Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel

Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence

Mr. Wan Man Keung

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OB.E, J.P.
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBS., J.p.
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, J.p.

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chan Tsze
Wah, Gabriel, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, G.B.S., 0.B.E., J.. and Mr. Alfred Donald
Yap, J.p. shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

WONG'S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, aged 56, has been a Director of the
Company since June 1990. In February 2003 he was appointed Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group in
1975. Mr. Wong is a director and the President of Wong's Electronics Co.,
Limited (“WEC") and a director of various other companies of the Group.
He is also a director of W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited (“WSW&S")
and Salop Investment Limited, both of which are substantial shareholders
of the Company. He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Operations
Research from Ohio State University and has over 33 years' experience in
the electronics industry. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Elegance International Holdings Limited. Mr. Wong is the brother of Mr.
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and the father of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada.

Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, aged 72, was appointed Director and
Chairman of the Company in June 1990. In February 2003, he stepped
down as Chairman but remained as an Executive Director of the Company.
He joined the Group in 1976 and is a director of various other companies
of the Group. He is also a director of WSW&S and Kong King International
Limited, both of which are substantial shareholders of the Company. He
has over 32 years’ experience in the electronics industry and is responsible
for policy and strategic planning for the Group. Mr. Wong is the brother of
Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben and the uncle of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada.

Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 59, has been a Director of the
Company since June 1990. He joined the Group in 1985. He was formerly
the Group's Financial Controller. In July 2007, he ceased to be the Group’s
Financial Controller and became a financial adviser of the Group. He is also
a director of various other companies of the Group. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He obtained a
Bachelor degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong.
Before joining the Group, he had approximately 10 years’ experience with
a major international firm of accountants.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence, aged 58, joined the Group in 1986 and in
February 2003 he was appointed Director of the Company. He is a director
and the President of Wong's International (USA) Corporation (“WIU"). He
is also a director of certain other companies of the Group. He is mainly
responsible for the Group’s overseas marketing and sales of products
to electronic manufacturing service customers. He graduated from Ohio
University with a BSEE in 1972 and then went to University of Michigan at
Ann Arbor and got his MSEE in 1974. After graduation, he joined a major
corporation in the United States for about 12 years before joining the
Group.

Mr. Wan Man Keung, aged 56, first joined the Group in January 1988.
After leaving the Group for about 14 months, he rejoined the Group in
June 1993. In January 2004 he was appointed Director of the Company. He
is a director and the Executive Vice President of WEC. He is also a director
of certain other companies of the Group. He obtained a Bachelor degree
in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and has over
32 years' experience in the electronics manufacturing industry. Mr. Wan
has the overall responsibility for serving a portfolio of customers at WEC.
He oversees the Electronic Manufacturing Service Division's New Sales and
Marketing Department and is responsible for the development of new
customers.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 30, joined the Group in 2002 and was
appointed Director of the Company in October 2005. She is responsible
for the Purchasing of Indirect Material and Outsourcing Departments. She
is also responsible for managing the Management Information System and
Plant Engineering of WEC. She obtained a Bachelor degree in Industrial
Engineering and a Master of Science in Engineering Management from
University of Southern California. Ms. Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong
Chung Mat, Ben and a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, aged 54, GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, B.A., FCPA (Practising),
FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS, FAIA (Hon), CGA (Hon), Hon. HKAT, RFP (Hon), joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director in April 1999.
Dr. Li is the senior partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants and an Independent Non-executive Director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited,
Roadshow Holdings Limited, Meadville Holdings Limited and Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. He is a Non-executive Director of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited. Dr. Li is presently a member of The 11th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
an adviser to its Ministry of Finance on international accounting standards.
He is a former member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong, former
chairman of its Public Accounts Committee and a past president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBS, )P, aged 69, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director in October 1999. He is the Managing
Director of the H.K.I. Group of Companies and a director of a number of
manufacturing and investment companies. He is an Independent Non-
executive Director of Sino Union Petroleum & Chemical International
Limited. He served as a member of the Preparatory Committee for the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and as a Hong Kong Affairs
Adviser. He is currently a member of the Standing Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and
Permanent Honorary President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association
of Hong Kong.

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, J.r, aged 69, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2004. He is presently a
consultant at K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former
president of The Law Society of Hong Kong and The Law Association for
Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA). He is also a former Hong Kong Affairs
Adviser. Mr. Yap has served on various public and community organisations
and is presently a member of the Town Planning Board. He is currently an
Independent Non-executive Director of eSun Holdings Limited, and Hung
Hing Printing Group Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Lam Sek Sung, Patrick, aged 50, joined the Group in 1985. He was
the director and the Vice President of WIU. In May 2007, he was appointed
the Group's Chief Financial Officer. He is also a director of certain other
companies of the Group. He is responsible for the Group’s overall financial
reporting. He received a Bachelor degree in Accounting and Master degree
in Information Science from Golden Gate University.

Mr. Mak King Mun, Philip, aged 56, joined the Group in 1980, left
in 1992, and rejoined the Group in August 2005 as the Chief Technical
Officer of WEC to head up the R&D Department. His job responsibility
expanded in October 2005 to include managing the Concurrent
Engineering Department. In March 2007, he was appointed Executive
Vice President of Engineering, Operations, and Quality Assurance. Before
joining the Group in 1980, he worked for a major American semiconductor
company. Mr. Mak obtained a Bachelor’s degree (High Honour) in Electrical
Engineering from Vanderbilt University, U.S.A., as well as a Master of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering and a Master of Engineering
degree in Computer Science from the University of California, Berkeley,
U.S.A.

Mr. Hon Hak Kan, Lawrence, aged 57, joined the Group in 1982 and
is a director and the Senior Vice President of WEC. He is also a director of
certain other companies of the Group. He is an Associate of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers (ACIB). He holds a Master of Science degree in Business
Economics from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master degree
in Business Administration from the University of East-Asia, Macau. Mr.
Hon has the overall responsibility for serving a portfolio of customers at
WEC.

Mr. Sumitada Hatakeyama, aged 65, joined the Group in 2002 as the
President of Wong's International Japan, Inc.. Before joining the Group,
he worked for a major electronics corporation in Japan for about 35
years where he was involved in overseas operations including sales and
marketing. He graduated from the University of Tokyo (faculty of law).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Elaine Tang Lee, aged 54, was in service with the Group between
1992 to 1994 and 2002 to 2004 and last rejoined the Group in 2005. She
was formerly a General Manager of WISRS (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. and Welco
Technologies Mexico, S.A. de C.V. She is now the Senior Vice President of
Welco Technology (Suzhou) Limited and is responsible for management of
the manufacturing facility. She graduated from San Jose State University
in California with a Bachelor of Science in Accounting. She has held senior
management positions in corporations in the United States, Europe and
Asia.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31st December, 2007, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

(Continued)
RAEDRRGDZITFE Long positions in shares of the Company
ZERER EZEDL

BITEEHSR g4 Number of  Percentage
Name of Executive Directors Capacity ordinary shares interests
F A EnEA AN REFEZEIMA (BT 1)
Wong Chung Mat, Ben Beneficial owner and founder of 75,810,699 16.24%

discretionary trust (Note 1)
TR BEEEAA - FRREBER

REREFEZBIMA (Hit2)
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Beneficial owner, interest of child 40,693,487 8.72%

or spouse and founder of

discretionary trust (Note 2)
BRF 5 BEEERA
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner 1,237,500 0.27%
B BEEERA
Tan Chang On, Lawrence Beneficial owner 10,000 0.00%
TEH PREFZZmA (Bt 3)
Wong Yin Man, Ada Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3) 74,810,699 16.02%

Wit -

1. EEREEWHRAE(BREESLHEEG) R
ZR/A7R)75,810,699 IR iF AR - 2%

P& 173

(a)

BATH0RE

1,000,000 A& %15 F8 £ B FR 5T A B A
ﬁ °

74,810,699 fZ %15 A Salop Investment
Limited (%2 &) i Batsford Limited 2 &
BAE)REBE-—ERETEEE - RES
HFRAEEE - ERREEWRAZE
AZBIA - MEBSUNEWR AR
—BZmA o FULRMER 2 E AR
oA (AZRERIEEE) ~ Salop Investment
Limited (A [ EZMRE 2 #Ems | — &8
B TBEGIERTXME34%E)
K Batsford Limited (R [ EZRE 2
| —E 4 R FEEE Y
74,810,699/ &7 T R R —#E AR {5 -

Notes:

1. Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested
in 75,810,699 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following
capacity:

(a

1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben personally.

74,810,699 shares were held by Salop Investment Limited (which was
in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) under a discretionary trust,
of which Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was regarded as the founder and
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada was regarded as one of the beneficiaries (by
virtue of the SFO). The references to 74,810,699 shares deemed to be
interested by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (as disclosed herein), Salop
Investment Limited (as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of
substantial shareholders”), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (as disclosed in
Note 3 below) and Batsford Limited (as disclosed in Note 4(a) under the
section headed “Interests of substantial shareholders”) relate to the
same block of shares.

WONG'S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007

23



EEEHRES

Directors’ Report

EERFETHRABRZER ()

RAXFREG 2HA (F)

Hist - ()

24

TR EARAR R (REEF LB ED) R
ANXT] 40,693,487 B i RE B o 2 F
BB BIAT HHE ¢

(a) 1,000,000 A B £ fy F 8 AL SE A B A 5
=

(b) 1,235,000 k& A E BB EEZET
PERELLHE -

(0 38,458,487 M 1% B Kong King
International Limited iR & —TB 2 {55
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 40,693,487 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a

1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny personally.

1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of Mr. Wong
Chung Ah, Johnny.

38,458,487 shares were held by Kong King International Limited under a
discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was regarded
as the founder (by virtue of the SFO). Kong King International Limited
was wholly owned by Mountainview International Limited, which
was wholly owned by HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) Limited (formerly
known as “Bermuda Trust (Cook Islands) Limited”). The references
to 38,458,487 shares deemed to be interested by Mr. Wong Chung
Ah, Johnny (as disclosed herein), Kong King International Limited,
Mountainview International Limited and HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands)
Limited (as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of substantial
shareholders”) relate to the same block of shares.

3. Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested
in 74,810,699 shares in the Company, which were held by Salop Investment

Limited (which was in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) under a

discretionary trust, of which Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada was regarded as one of

the beneficiaries and Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was regarded as the founder
(by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note 1(b) above.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the Company

EERHE ®EEEI

HITESHR LR 514 Number of Percentage
Name of Executive Director Associated corporation Capacity ordinary shares interests
oot ITRMEZERERAT RYEHLER 2t s (ET) 2 50%
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Wong's Properties Limited  Interest of controlled

Hfat - E RIS WA A (IRIEFE S LA ) 7
FRMEZFRBMRARZ2RRMNFFEERE
o RERMBBBIREBRATEE - I§
318 BB R A A/ Glorious Glow Limited #
B 50% iz + M Glorious Glow Limited Bl|f#
TRGEELEHS -

ETEEUERTA - KREARRHARA
HiMEARRAEARRETHEARZA
BIRRD

BRABEFEREEN RZTETLF+=A
=+—H ARAESHEBITHABRE
REZH@%%%/\ﬂE%ﬁEGZK'AETEJZﬁEWH
A B (E R R ES RATEEGIE XV E) 2k
% *aﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁws%%q%ﬁ Al B B 5H
Hﬁifwu%3521%%%%?2@%%2%
wmEOAR - ERBRETFAME AN
PSP 2 RERR TR ©

corporations (Note)

Note:  Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 2 shares in Wong's Properties Limited. These shares were held
by Blessea Investment Limited, which was 50% owned by Glorious Glow
Limited, which in turn was wholly owned by Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

Certain Directors held qualifying shares in certain subsidiaries of the
Company on trust for the Company or other subsidiaries of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st December, 2007, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as
at 31st December, 2007, persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

I

RAEDRRGDZITFE Long positions in shares of the Company
ZEREAE EZEDL

FERRERE g4 Number of  Percentage

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity ordinary shares interests

FEMRXTFAERAR] BB A K1)

W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 195,338,803 41.84%
BEnlEBAMT2)

Salop Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 74,810,699 16.02%
(ERINCIEEY

HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee (Note 3) 40,957,546 8.77%
(ERINCIETY

Batsford Limited Trustee (Note 4) 270,949,502 58.03%

ZEREAR EEED

Hih A &8 g4 Number of  Percentage

Name of other persons Capacity ordinary shares interests
BB A (K5E5)

Kong King International Limited Beneficial owner (Note 5) 38,458,487 8.24%
EFEA (B3t 5)

Mountainview International Limited Trustee (Note 5) 38,458,487 8.24%
EFEA (Wit 5)

HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) Limited Trustee (Note 5) 38,458,487 8.24%

(A7 formerly known as “Bermuda
Trust (Cook Islands) Limited”)
F ERL EREETZEIMA (K7t 6)
Wong Chung Yin, Michael Founder of discretionary trust (Note 6) 29,683,960 6.36%

TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH
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RAERATRBDZFE (E)
et -

1. EEMRXFERARR A ERRIEZES
Z X A] - W ZRX F) 195,338,803 AR AR {5
A -

Levy Investment Limited £z Salop Investment
Limited % B 7R EEMRFER AT Z19%
W MmaZMmEAEBIH Batsford Limited 2
BHA - Bt RIEZBFRPEKRD - £
W F AR A AR A Batsford Limited 252
THPEE - kiR EERRFRRAA
(RZRER#:5R ) K #5487 & F Batsford Limited (7%
T XPHEEA(c) B FR) #5575 # 4R 2 195,338,803
AER&AR TP A —HERR 17

2. H2HEFREBITRAB S| —EH
1) °

3. HSBC International Trustee Limited #4% & (1R
BESH LB K R AT 40,957,546 %
B FEEZ ZERNBEBUATHNF
£

(@) 17,584,960 % % {7 AlLevy Pacific
Limited (i22A &) HSBC International
Trustee Limited 2 &% H)IREE—HE2
BEFRE - RIBESFREEGRD - £
BB AW BZIETZBIHEA © IRIE
BE K EAEEB) - HSBC International
Trustee Limited B{EFEA ° fEILIRHT
R AMHSBC International Trustee
Limited (RANER %5 ) Ik £ ABREL A&
(RTXMzEeb)HE) FE#ERZ
17,584,960/ A% 17 Th B F A —HEAR (S

(b) 11,357,150 A% A% 17 F5 Floral Inc. (’Z A )
F HSBC International Trustee Limited &
BHA)RE—B2EETEE - BRIE
FBE K EAEEB) - HSBC International
Trustee Limited A% E5E 2 fEFEA ©

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited was a company controlled by the Wong
family and was interested in 195,338,803 shares in the Company.

Each of Levy Investment Limited and Salop Investment Limited owned 19%
of W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited, and was in turn wholly owned by
Batsford Limited. Accordingly, W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited was
regarded as a controlled corporation of Batsford Limited (by virtue of the
SFO). The references to 195,338,803 shares interested by W. S. Wong &
Sons Company Limited (as disclosed herein) and deemed to be interested by
Batsford Limited (as disclosed in Note 4(c) below) relate to the same block of
shares.

Please see Note 1(b) under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.

HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 40,957,546 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(@ 17,584,960 shares were held by Levy Pacific Limited (which was wholly
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited) under a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was regarded as the
founder (by virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited
was the trustee (by virtue of the SFO). The references to 17,584,960
shares deemed to be interested by HSBC International Trustee Limited
(as disclosed herein) and Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael (as disclosed in
Note 6(b) below) relate to the same block of shares.

(b) 11,357,150 shares were held by Floral Inc. (which was wholly owned by
HSBC International Trustee Limited) under a discretionary trust of which
HSBC International Trustee Limited was the trustee (by virtue of the SFO).

WONG'S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007

27



28

EEEHRES

Directors’ Report

FERRzEm (&)

RAXFREG 2HA (F)

Hist - ()

()

12,015,436 A& % {5 Fa Sycamore Assets
Limited (%22 "I HSBC International
Trustee Limited 2 &% A8 IRIE—ES

BEXARHA - REEFRBEHEN

HSBC International Trustee Limited &5%
EFEZ1EREA ©

4. Batsford Limited #1% & (ARIZFH L HIE K
Il ) 77K A 7 270,949,502 B f% 17 7R 35 7 #E

(a)

FZERNBEBANT HNFEE

74,810,699 %% 5 A Salop Investment
Limited (%2 &) Batsford Limited 2&
A )IREBE-IEDRERREE - RIEE
HREIEIER) 0 TAREEWR A%E
EZEIMEA  MIEBSMAWR AHF
—E&Xm A FR2HEEFREETH
ANB x| —E&HiEE1()

800,000 % % £ HiLevy Investment
Limited (i 2 7]/ Batsford Limited &
BHE)RE—B2EETEE - BRI
BERBEED  TEREERE AR
ZIEFEZ BN o TEILIR AL AR A B
Batsford Limited (PAZRER % B8 ) }2 F A HE
Fe i (T SPRT 6(a) B ER ) AR <
800,000 AR {7 T BB 7O E —#EP& 15 °

() 195,338,803 KM A THEMRXFHR
NEF AR - IRBFHFRBAEK -
/A B8 A Batsford Limited 2 454
EE o B2 EXHEET .
5. w2HEEREFEITHRAB 2] —&H
F52(0) °

TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

12,015,436 shares were held by Sycamore Assets Limited (which
was wholly owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited) under a
discretionary trust of which HSBC International Trustee Limited was the
trustee (by virtue of the SFO).

4. Batsford Limited was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in
270,949,502 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the following
capacity:

(a)

74,810,699 shares were held by Salop Investment Limited (which was
in turn wholly owned by Batsford Limited) under a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was regarded as the founder and Ms.
Wong Yin Man, Ada was regarded as one of the beneficiaries (by virtue
of the SFO). Please see Note 1(b) under the section headed “Interests of
Directors and chief executives”.

800,000 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited (which was in turn
wholly owned by Batsford Limited) under a discretionary trust, of which
Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was regarded as the founder (by virtue of
the SFO). The references to 800,000 shares deemed to be interested by
Batsford Limited (as disclosed herein) and Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael
(as disclosed in Note 6(a) below) relate to the same block of shares.

195,338,803 shares were interested by W. S. Wong & Sons Company
Limited, which was regarded as a controlled corporation of Batsford
Limited (by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note 1 above.

5. Please see Note 2(c) under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.
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6. EARREEEWRRRERESLAEEN) R
R 29,683,960 A R FF A o %5
BB BIAT HHE ¢

(a)

FREFEES - 7

800,000 f% % 5 HiLevy Investment
Limited (§% ‘2 A1/ Batsford Limited 2%
T?’E*ﬁ_)@TF*IEAT@ FEREA o IRIEFE
% M EE G &?ﬁi?&ﬁtﬂ**
ZEIPEA o Eﬁ%ﬁaijﬂfﬁﬁél

17,584,960% A% 7 HLevy Pacific Limited
BRI —TARREFEE - @TF”*%‘F&HH
BiE0 - TEREEEE RZER

BN o RIBFEH LEREED - HSBC
International Trustee Limited A{S+E

A ° @25 X 3(a)

11,299,000 &% 13 X 35 The Pacific Way
Unit TrustiFs o ?ﬁﬁ*ﬁtﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ% '
REBEFEH KB - T BREERER
RIAREE %Zal#}#/\

A=ETEEF A=+

B EFUTAFERMEMALTRARBR
D SARRRL D B B RSN R %}&Hﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ
{5156 336 (G AR E BT < FCEkM A 2 B E 30K

PN
E o

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

6.  Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 29,683,960 shares in the Company. These shares were held in the
following capacity:

(a

800,000 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited (which was in turn
wholly owned by Batsford Limited) under a discretionary trust, of which
Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was regarded as the founder (by virtue of
the SFO). Please see Note 4(b) above.

17,584,960 shares were held by Levy Pacific Limited under a
discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael was
regarded as the founder (by virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International
Trustee Limited was the trustee (by virtue of the SFO). Please see Note
3(a) above.

11,299,000 shares were held for The Pacific Way Unit Trust. Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael was regarded as the founder of the discretionary
trust (by virtue of the SFO) in relation to the same block of shares.

Save as disclosed, the Directors are not aware of any other persons who,

as at 31st December, 2007, had interests or short positions in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

There were no outstanding options at the beginning and at the end of the
year.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, no options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed.

SUMMARY OF THE EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme") which
came into effect on 30th July, 2000, disclosed in accordance with the
Listing Rules is as follows:

st
The Scheme

1. FEIZE®

Purpose of the Scheme

2. FrElz2EE
Participants of the Scheme

3. FIRBETBIEIT RV MEE - ARRA
WEBHMEEEITRAZES L
Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme and % of the issued
capital that it represents as at the date of
this Report

TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH

ER%E TIRE Z 52/

As incentive to employees

EEAREE (BEARRARSEMMBAR ZERITES - LRARAR
RIS A R E 2 BERE D 2 BRI M E B 2 AR RSB L
A2 ERSHRITRAE - TEHEES)

Eligible employees including any executive director of the Company or any
subsidiary, and any senior executive, officer or employee of the Company
or any subsidiary employed to render full-time or substantially full-time
service to the Company or a subsidiary

46,692,179 BER% 170 (10%)
46,692,179 shares (10%)
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SUMMARY OF THE EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

BE !
The Scheme

4. BR2HEEREBABZESER
Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Scheme

5. AIRERERERER G 2 B
The period within which the shares must
be taken up under an option

6. BIRERETEANARAZKEHR
(anh)
The minimum period, if any, for which
an option must be held before it can be
exercised

7. EEBEEMERER SN 2 A
B) - KA A AL AR B A R ek
B SKLRERFUER Z ERX
The amount, if any, payable on
application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans for
such purpose must be repaid

RIEFTE - HE2EEERTRRE  MASRAER2EEMETL
AETzZRNBEBAERBETSESETHATEITZRNOERZ
10% ° B45 FTRAIFE 17T - RIFEGERRIE - TAIGR2EEEE
] 12 B A AR 2 BEARIE (BB BT RoRT T 2 BB AR ) T LATT R
FRE1T RGBT 2RI RS - TMEHBBEEITRAZ1% o

Under the Scheme, no participant shall be granted an option which would
result in the number of shares issued or issuable to the relevant participant
exceeding 10% of the aggregate number of the shares for the time being
issued or issuable under the Scheme. Pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital, unless approved by shareholders.

B R N E E 2B R R PTIE TE 2 BiRTTE - TSR
H HEREET 1 F BN B BAREET 106 -

An option may be exercised as specified by the Directors in relation to such
option in its terms of grant which shall not be earlier than 1 year after its
date of grant, nor be more than 10 years from its date of grant.

PRIRE A HIR 1 FRTTEBARE -

No option shall be exercisable earlier than 1 year after its date of grant.

REWER 2 BIRE - ARMERR TREREZ ZH R BT 28 B (E
EPBEEECHMBF) RIIBB 10T TART  FAERERE
RE-

To accept the offer of the grant of an option, HK$10 as consideration for
the grant of an option must be paid to the Company within a period of 28
days (or otherwise at the Directors” discretion) from the date upon which
an offer of the grant of an option is made.
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SUMMARY OF THE EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(Continued)

BE
The Scheme

8. EEITHEZEE
The basis of determining the exercise
price

9. FIEIZFERFH

The remaining life of the Scheme

TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH

BELTRAUE17E - (TREEAKLIRTIREZESE
Pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules the exercise price must be at
least the higher of:

(@ BRONELBEH(WARERB)RBIMERRERZIWHE &
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily
guotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and

(b) MROMREEFR L BEIA R A3 AN e R RER Pk
=
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant.

RIEFE - ITEENMFERRGK 2 EE °
Under the Scheme, the exercise price must not be below the nominal
amount of the shares.

SRR T —EF LA =T B A XSRS R -
The Scheme will expire at the close of business on 30th July, 2010.
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REMBERRME28R - RFAR - AEEYL
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the employee share option scheme, at no time during the year
was the Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporations a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits by an acquisition
of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporations.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements constitutes a connected transaction, the disclosure and
approval requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been complied
with.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the Company or
its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), with any Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within one year or on demand are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. Bank loans and
other borrowings repayable within a period of more than one year are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. No interest was
capitalised by the Group during the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date
of this Report, the Company believes that the number of securities of
the Company which are in the hands of the public is above the relevant
prescribed minimum percentage.

JOINT AUDITORS

On 17th November, 2005, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING
(HK)") replaced Ho and Ho & Company (“Ho & Ho") as one of the joint
auditors of the Company. SHINEWING (HK) was established as Ho & Ho
has joined SHINEWING Certified Public Accountants in China. Accordingly,
Ho & Ho resigned on 17th November, 2005 and SHINEWING (HK) was
appointed on the same day to fill the casual vacancy. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) remained as the other joint auditors.

On 21st August, 2006, Deloitte resigned as one of the joint auditors and
Grant Thornton was appointed on 1st September, 2006 to fill the casual
vacancy. SHINEWING (HK) remained as the other joint auditors.

The joint auditors, Grant Thornton and SHINEWING (HK), retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15th April, 2008
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasize a quality board, sound internal control,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31st December,
2007, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the “Code
on Corporate Governance Practices” (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except that (a) the positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were occupied by the same person,
which deviates from code provision A.2.1; and (b) the Independent Non-
executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, which deviates
from code provision A.4.1.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31st December, 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is mainly responsible for formulating
corporate strategies, approving business plans and supervising the
Company’s financial and management performance. Matters which may
be discussed in Board meetings include the formulation of the Group's
strategies and policies; approval of significant business, management
and financial matters, annual budgets, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital commitments; approval of matters relating to the Company’s
constitution and share capital, and change of board members and auditors;
establishment of board committees; review of corporate governance and
the maintenance of a sound internal control system.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the management, which includes
the preparation of accounts for the Board’s approval; implementation
of strategies and policies approved by the Board; day-to-day monitoring
of budgets; implementation of specific business and work projects;
implementation of corporate governance and internal control procedures
and other compliance matters. Management presents regular reports to
the Board for their review and guidance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors (including relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 18 to 22 of this Annual Report.

The Board holds at least four regular Board meetings at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the overall strategy, operation and financial
performance of the Company. In addition to the regular Board meetings,
the Board also meets from time to time to review the progress of the
matters delegated to the management and any major developments or
changes taken place during the intervals between regular Board meetings.
The total number of Board meetings held during the year ended 31st
December, 2007 was twelve.

The attendance of the Directors at four regular Board meetings were as
follows:

HER

Attendance

BITES
TR (LERTTEARE)
TRRLSE
RyELE
BRRELE
BERIREE
TEHNE

BYFHTES
FHREBLT
BEAE L
RRERLE

TRER(EE)ERLT B — 2T HFFH

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4

Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny 4/4
Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4
Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence 2/4
Mr. Wan Man Keung 4/4
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4
Dr. Yu Sun Say 3/4
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 3/4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Before the holding of a Board meeting, the Board is supplied with all
necessary information to enable it to consider the matters to be discussed.
A formal agenda is followed in all Board meetings. The quarterly Board
meetings are scheduled at the beginning of the financial year in order to
ensure maximum attendance by Directors. All business transacted at the
Board meetings is documented in the minutes of such meeting. Some
Board decisions are made by way of written resolutions of all Directors. All
Board members have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. If necessary, Directors also have access to external professional
advice at the expense of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and has occupied these two positions since February 2003. In
allowing the two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(@) Both positions require in-depth knowledge and considerable
experience of the Group’s business. Candidates with the suitable
knowledge, experience and leadership are difficult to find both
within and outside the Group. If either of the positions is occupied
by an unqualified person, the Group's performance could be gravely
compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of the Board and its
Independent Non-executive Directors can provide an effective
check and balance mechanism and ensures that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately represented.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent Non-executive Directors
comprise a good mix of industrial, financial and legal expertise to advise
the Board and the management team on strategy formulation and other
financial or regulatory requirements. Pursuant to the requirement in
the Listing Rules, each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
provided an annual confirmation of independence to the Company. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

None of the existing Non-executive Directors of the Company is appointed
for a specific term. However, every Director of the Company is now
subject to retirement by rotation under Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of the
Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices
are no less exacting than those in the Code.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee which comprises
two Independent Non-executive Directors (Dr. Yu Sun Say, who is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Alfred Donald Yap)
and one Executive Director (Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel).

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
the formulation of the Group’s remuneration policy, the approval or
recommendation of remuneration packages for the Executive Directors
and the senior management, and the review and approval of performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives.

During the year ended 31st December, 2007, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting and made some decisions by way of written
resolutions of all members to review and approve the remuneration,
including salary and bonus, of the Executive Directors and senior
management.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members at this meeting
was as follows:

HE=
Attendance
BIYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
BEAE L (FE) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 11
BEXELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 11
BITES Executive Directors
BRFEESLAE Mr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 0N

AR Z F BRI R WA & i S B
FHZME ARS8 KR E BRI
BAKEEK -EFE M HRBERESER
SEMNEZBREEE S BRERARFZ
BE - NABZFMBER RIS ERIERE -

REES

ARRLERIIEREZEE® - IEARRE
EHEEIMRALRZEESUNESEL
ANE - MEFSFHERRZSE  XYREAF
BELRRENZEZTERE - U IR
ERRBZHEFT °
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The Company’s remuneration policy is to establish and maintain an
appropriate and competitive level of remuneration to attract, retain and
motivate employees to run the Group successfully. The emoluments of
Directors are based on the anticipated time and effort required from each
Director, duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
remuneration policy and market benchmark.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. All Directors
of the Company are responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession, with
a view to appoint to the Board individuals with suitable experience and
capabilities to maintain and improve the competitiveness of the Company.



TEER

Corporate Governance Report

REEE(R)

E1IEJ%$VE&T&F%%E§?§ CEFEYHER

BZEEESR  KREREECERFELE
)% EXeNERERENRARZANEZE
ﬁﬂ/\iPﬁ{’EﬁZT&%L% cHZ EFEH

TRANWZEFRS  WES  ABBER
T?cﬁﬁ%)\ EREE -
R EREEIZ
EEHERASBERREMCNIERA

EERBEMT WEREZRZESRITAM
EEZBRM - AMERHPIHEREER 2 A
Bl Es 1 R e HiE TTWuM 5 B EE
% B RERELRERERENRE  BEE
é,\aﬂﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬂl/\,@\?ﬂﬁi 1% % 7€ AR

CRET N EZBPIETASEZ T
?éfﬁ&ﬁﬁu WIREEEER - ZTEE® 217
RA BTN IRESESS R E 1B M B0 FT B RUB
A WERAEHFIEEREREEL 21T
B) o A EZEFIMEE RN EB NI
B ERLZERERABREER -

AEBAREERSE ERRHAEMIEE
HZRE  UGHELRERERRALE
Ko WEIBMIFHERLERFRRZER
WML AEEMZIERR - R-FTLF
B BERWEMR B EMERNZ ARREE
gH - ERZESHARNCHER  FHER
BB S ERRE ZHEETIER
@Z\iu/ﬁji °

BRI &

HE-ZZLHF+-_A=+T—HIFE 3
FEIZRTS B S BB FE A BAD 1S = & A
TRIEKFM(BR) S5 EHEBER AR
ZBNe A% 2,280,0007T - BHE-_ZTZLF
TZA=T—BLEFEA - BIEIMNIEEZ
BR75 2 A T Ht FEAZ 2HAD o

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Following recommendations by individual Directors, the Board considers
the professional background, experience and track records of the relevant
candidates. The Board also considers the recommendations from the
management team and other individuals who know the candidates.
Subsequently, the Board meets to discuss the nominations and if
appropriate, approve the appointment of the relevant candidates as
Directors.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department conducts regular
internal reviews of the Group’s internal control system covering the
financial, operational, and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The Compliance Committee which comprises the executives
of the Group meets regularly to review the findings and opinions of
internal audits conducted by the Internal Audit Department and makes
the relevant recommendations. The executives from the Committee will
also ensure the control weaknesses are effectively communicated to the
relevant departments and monitor the follow-up actions in response
to its recommendations. The Internal Audit Department will also report
their findings and advice to the Audit Committee which oversees the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

The purpose of the Group’s internal control is to provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational system so
that the Group’s objectives can be reached. For the year of 2007, the
Board has not identified any critical internal control weaknesses. The
Audit Committee is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December, 2007, the remuneration paid or
payable to the joint auditors, Grant Thornton and SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited, for audit services amounted to HK$2,280,000. During the year
ended 31st December, 2007, no payments for non-audit services to the
joint auditors were made.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (the
Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and Mr. Alfred Donald
Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the oversight of the
Group's financial reporting system and internal control procedures, review
of the Group’s financial information and review of the relationship with the
auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors three times during the
year ended 31st December, 2007 and reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters including a review of the 2006 final results
and 2007 interim results of the Group. It has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2007.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at three meetings were
as follows:

HE =
Attendance

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
EREE L (FE) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 3/3
R i Dr. Yu Sun Say 3/3
BEXELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/3
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DIRECTORS’ AND JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The responsibilities of the Directors and the joint auditors for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the
“Independent Joint Auditors’ Report” on pages 43 to 44 of this Annual
Report.
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The Group's total assets as at 31st December, 2007 amounted to
HK$1,679,492,000 which is HK$231,054,000 lower compared with last
year. The breakdown of the change in total assets is as below:

2, i)

Increase / (Decrease)

BT T

HK$'000

"B Investment properties 31,500
W - WEKEERENEERIE Property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments (10,671)
NI Interests in associates (36,381)
BN ANE AL Development costs capitalised (1,870)
FE Inventories (42,783)
B 5 R A EUERK Trade and other receivables (134,248)
HESERE Deposits and prepayments 15,034
IRITHEBRNIRS Bank balances and cash (50,681)
Hin Sundries (954)
(231,054)
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The increase in investment properties represented the appreciation in their
fair value recognised during the year.

The net decrease in property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments represented mainly the excess of the depreciation charge for
the year of about HK$68 million over the cost of new additional plant and
equipment acquired during the year of HK$50 million and the exchange
gain on translation of property, plant and equipment of foreign operations.

The decrease in interests in associates was mainly caused by the repayment
of loans and dividend paid by associated companies of about HK$27
million and HK$12 million respectively. The effect of the above decreases
was partly offset by the Group's share of profit of an associated company
for the year.

Development costs capitalised represented the cost of development of
new products incurred by the Original Design and Marketing Division, the
recovery of which is anticipated to be realised through future benefits from
sales activities.
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The decrease in inventories mainly reflected the Group’'s effort in
tightening its inventory control and our determination to reduce our
carrying inventory on hand.

The substantial decrease in trade and other receivables was principally
due to our off-setting settlement of more than HK$113 million between
accounts receivables and payables among several customers which were
outstanding as stated in our 2006 annual report. The decline in our sales
revenue during the year also contributes to the decrease in our ending
balance of trade and other receivables at the year-end of 2007.

The increase in deposits and prepayment in 2007 was mainly due to
increase in purchase of tooling and manufacturing fixtures in an amount
of HK$17 million for new projects in our Shajing’s factory. In addition, the
increase also represented a deposit of HK$3 million on purchase of two
parcels of land in Vietnam to build a new manufacturing factory. However,
the overall increase was partially offset by the settlement of deposits for
electricity supplied by Shajing local city.
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o Grant Thornton
HE

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG'S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wong's
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 124, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December, 2007, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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JOINT AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the joint auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the joint auditors consider internal control relevant to the
Group’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2007 and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited Grant Thornton
Certified Public Accountants
Chan Wing Kit

Practising certificate number: P03224

Certified Public Accountants

16/F., United Centre
95 Queensway

13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark
Hong Kong 15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 15th April, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
i BET T BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Uk & Revenue 7 3,363,777 3,713,784
A EUA Interest income 5,009 3,951
H WA Other income 20,581 16,310
Sk mRERMEFEE 2 # Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress 1,906 (4,978)
B A 2 R B2 B #E i Raw materials and
consumables used (2,727,070) (3,056,421)
BIAKA Staff costs (290,763)  (257,448)
e Depreciation (67,739) (61,065)
R AN E AN b 2 5 Amortisation on development
costs capitalised 21 (8,702) (10,936)
TET &SR8 2 5 Amortisation on prepaid lease
payments (2,166) (2,154)
HEMERTFEE LN Increase in fair value of
investment properties 15 31,500 3,440
SRTANTFEEZE Fair value changes on financial
instruments 1,422 (707)
HE s Other operating expenses (218,465) (231,624)
BB Finance costs 9 (22,850) (26,867)
—FEEENR 2 EE 2 Impairment loss recognised in
BRI ERE respect of goodwill of
an associate 18 (1,990) -
HA% & 2 B ERBEEE Impairment loss recognised
in respect of other investments 20 (3,104) -
FIRAIMEEECEEY Impairment loss recognised
BEERREESE in respect of asset classified
as held for sale 25 - (8,795)
il NET Share of results of associates 2,299 2,526
FEKARER b2 Impairment loss recognised
BRI EEE in respect of development
costs capitalised 21 (1,696) (753)
FRBE AR Al Profit before taxation 10 81,949 78,263
I8 Taxation 12 (11,081) (16,320)
2 g A Profit for the year 70,868 61,943
PATRIE B MG : Attributable to:
NCINEGESZEDN Equity holders of the Company 70,868 61,943
DEIR R R Minority interests - =
70,868 61,943
fz 2. Dividends 13 14,008 23,347
FR2R Earnings per share 14
B Basic BEHKS0.157T  BEHKS0.137T
e Diluted THEANA TEANA
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R=ZZZTLF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007
‘ 2007 2006
Ff s BT PRI
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
I REBEE Non-current assets
"B Investment properties 15 58,710 27,210
Y - BE K& Property, plant and equipment 16 251,197 260,154
AR ERIE Prepaid lease payments 17 84,998 86,724
BN T > 1826 Interests in associates 18 75,096 111,477
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 19 168 162
Hpx & Other investments 20 4,688 7,792
REKAERL Development costs capitalised 21 14,566 16,436
RIERRITEE E Deferred tax asset 29 2,642 1,884
492,065 511,839
REBEE Current assets
iﬁﬁﬁ = RIE Prepaid lease payments 17 2,166 2,154
FE Inventories 22 317,581 360,364
B 5 R H At IR 2 Trade and other receivables 23 621,376 755,624
[P Tax reserve certificate 5,943 4,557
sl & RIERFIE Deposits and prepayments 38,514 23,480
RITHER RIS Bank balances and cash 195,846 246,527
1,181,426 1,392,706
P RAIEHE 2 BE Asset classified as held for sale 25 6,001 6,001
1,187,427 1,398,707
RBARG Current liabilities
2 5 Rk E A FERTERR Trade and other payables 26 700,601 738,658
iANE S Bills payable - 3,386
FERFRIE Tax payable 14,950 14,991
FES—FIEE = A B KIE Amount due to an associate 27 3,183 7,008
TESHBTAE Derivative financial instruments 24 - 1,422
—FRREZRITER Bank borrowings due within one year 28 92,148 272,987
810,882 1,038,452
RENE EFE Net current assets 376,545 360,255
WEERREBEE Total assets less current liabilities 868,610 872,094
ERBARE Non-current liabilities
—F R ZRITER Bank borrowings due after one year 28 124,340 193,367
REFIIE A F Deferred tax liability 29 5,994 3,278
130,334 196,645
738,276 675,449
BERR G Capital and reserves
EEN Share capital 30 46,692 46,692
it Reserves 691,584 628,412
RRIRIDFFE AL R Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 738,276 675,104
DY R ER Minority interests - 345
738,276 675,449

BREASE 124 B 2 REVEHRERERZT
TNFUNA+HBESES I ERRET
% WHNIIESRERESE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 124 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15th April, 2008 and
are signed on its behalf by:

FERK F ARG WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG CHUNG AH, JOHNNY
FEFTIEAAE EE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director

46 TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH



RERAEE R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZTTLF+A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2007

DARBEEARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
&% R&
RERE EfiiG ) |
B RitaE Capital B4ARS  Ivestment  RERE Enfis iR xR
Share Share  redemption  Contributed  revaluation Dividend  Translation ~ Accumulated ] Minority g
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
BETn  BBTn BT BT BT BT BETn BRI BETn BMTn BETa
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000
RZFERE-A-H  Atist/anuary, 2006 46,69 148864 345 331,559 63 9,339 (61,118) 153,721 629,465 345 629810
ERRRARED xchange diference
JEHER directly recognised
nequiy - - - - - : 23 - 2837 - 243
THHEREAT Fairvalue change on
BlEED avalable-for-sale
investments - - - - (63) - - - (63) - (63)
ERRRARED Net income recognised
LN directlyin equty - - - - 63) - 2837 - 2374 - 2374
ERigH| Profit for the year - - - - - - - 61943 61943 - 61943
EMEBIMA Total recognised income
F?i) a% (expenses) for the year - - - - 63) - 2437 61,943 64,317 = 64,317
2E5NERE Proposed final dividend
R for 2006 - - - - - 14,008 - (14,008) - - -
BffkE Dividends paid
-ZSZREREMRE - for 2005 final dividend - - - - - (9,339 - - (9,339 - (9339
-ZESERHRE - for 2006 interim dividend - - - - - - - (9339) 9:339) - (9339)
RZZENE At 315t December,
TZR=1-Bk 2006 and
Z53tE-A-A 1st January, 2007 46,69 148864 345 331,559 - 14,008 (58,681) 192317 675,104 345 675,449
ERRRARED xchange difference directly
LERER recognised in equity - - - - - - 10978 - 10978 - 10978
THHEREAT Fairvalue change on
HE ) avalable-for-sale
investments - - - - 3 - - - 3 - 3
ERRRARED Net income recognised
LBAEE directlyin equity - - - - 3 - 10978 - 10981 - 10981
ERigH Profit for the year - - - - - - - 70,868 70,8368 - 70,868
fis-EHEA Deregistration of a subsicary - - - - - - - - - (345) (345)
ERBRDIA Total recognised income
(B8 (expenses) for the year - - - - 3 - 10978 70,868 81,849 (345) 81,504
“ESLEEERMS  Proposed final dividend
for 2007 - - - - - 9,339 - (9339 - - -
Bk Dividends paid
~ZEENERERE - for 2006 final dividend - - - - - (14,008) - - (14,008) - (14,008)
~ZETLERERE - for 2007 interim dividend - - - - - - - (4,669) (4,669) - (4669)
HoBRLE At 31t December,
TZR=1-A 2007 46,692 148,864 345 331,559 3 9,339 (47,703) 9171 138,276 - 138,276
Hiat - Note:

AEEZEZBRBAEER - NN TFEAR
Ffr Y 8 B % ) B £ 2z T B AR % ) st W B v 3%
Il 2 {EME 2 25 -

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group's
reorganisation in 1990.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$’000
ST Operating activities
BR AR A& ) Profit before taxation 81,949 78,263
M TFIBIERE Adjustments for:
BB Finance costs 22,850 26,867
JE(LBE SN R EAE Share of results of associates (2,299) (2,526)
e Depreciation 67,739 61,065
PSRN E b 2 #E3H Amortisation on development costs
capitalised 8,702 10,936
TES T EFRIE 2 8 Amortisation on prepaid lease payments 2,166 2,154
CMITAQNTEEZE Fair value changes on financial
instruments (1,422) 707
—fHERARZEEZ Impairment loss recognised in respect of
BRI ER R goodwill of an associate 1,990 -
HMigE v B R EEE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
other investments 3,104 -
FEKAE RN b2 B R Impairment loss recognised in respect of
REEE development costs capitalised 1,696 753
REREEE Allowance for doubtful debts
— & 5 R E M FEWERFK — trade and other receivables 322 638
— FEURESE & A B 5RIE — amounts due from associates 936 -
B 5 K H b S BR 52 S Write off of trade and other payables (5,598) (10,606)
FE WA Interest income (5,009) (3,951)
REMERTFEE LN Increase in fair value of investment
properties (31,500) (3,440)
HEME - KRE RF&E2EE(FEE) Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net 733 494
HiE — B S EH I B A 5] 2 e Gain on write off of a deregistered
subsidiary (345) -
RAHHECEEZE Impairment loss recognised in respect
ERREEE of asset classified as held for sale - 8,795
EBEESEFI 2 EHE Operating cash flows before movements in
REME working capital 146,014 170,149
FERD Decrease in inventories 42,783 20,795
B 5 Nk EMREUERFOR A (42 0) Decrease (increase) in trade
and other receivables 133,926 (209,820)
21 IR FRIAIE I Increase in deposits and prepayments (15,034) (10,541)
B 5 R EAERBRFK Ofi4) 180 (Decrease) increase in trade and other
payables (32,459) 230,458
FERTE=ER ORiA) 38N (Decrease) increase in bills payable (3,386) 1,926
EEMERE Cash generated from operations 271,844 202,967
BEREBRER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (9,710) (15,923)
EREFENEH Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 284
(B B REEMREEERIAR Tax (paid) refunded in other jurisdictions (957) 122
EETBESEEEHE Net cash from operating activities 261,177 187,450
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2007 2006
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RETE Investing activities
BAME - BE KRG Purchase of property, plant and equipment (49,511) (51,794)
BEHMEE Purchase of other investments - (7,792)
I EE K N B AN 18 0 Increase in development costs capitalised (8,185) (8,109)
BEEERNAZ Purchase of additional interests in
BIMER associates (3,097) =
B UEF B Interest received 5,009 3,951
HERFA =R BIREMEHRIE Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity
investments - 7,958
LEWME - BE REREEHIE Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 302 17
Bt N RIBFE Net repayment from associates 22,851 8,965
Bl —fEE AT E Dividends received from an associate 12,175 5,199
RETEFERESFHE Net cash used in investing activities (20,456) (41,605)
REEE Financing activities
BERRE Dividends paid (18,677) (18,678)
EEFERITER New bank loans raised 210,646 133,046
EEIBITER Repayment of bank loans (447,882)  (184,291)
BRFE Interest paid (22,850) (26,867)
RS EE TR SR Net cash used in financing activities (278,763) (96,790)
ReRBESEEEEZ Net (decrease) increase in cash and
(R4 EhnFEEE cash equivalents (38,042) 49,055
R—BA—BZEER Cash and cash equivalents
BHEEEER at 1st January 233,897 187,932
PR E) 2 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 9) (3,090)
R+t-—A=+—HzE& Cash and cash equivalents
REE&ZEEHE at 31st December 195,846 233,897
ReRASEEEREBZ Analysis of the balances of cash and
EER DT cash equivalents
IRITHE R MRS Bank balances and cash 195,846 246,527
SR1TE S (F17E28) Bank overdrafts (note 28) - (12,630)
195,846 233,897
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007
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GENERAL

Wong's International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are the development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronic products, including micro-computers,
telecommunication equipment, broadband communication
products, internet appliances, wireless communication or networking
equipment and other electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standards, amendment and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") that are relevant to the Group and effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007.

Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS") 1

Capital Disclosures

(Amendment)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC)-Interpretation Scope of HKFRS 2

("Int") 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

The adoption of these new and amended HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies but gave rise to
additional disclosures as follows:



e B ISR R B EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_ZZ+F+_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

2. HRAMIIREETEEUBRE

¥EH

bt

2.1

2.2
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rEE
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SEFTETERIEU K R E BB ERBER
BEEERFE-[ERIA:
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FEZAR -

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1

2.2

HKAS 1 (Amendment) — Capital Disclosures

In accordance with HKAS 1 (Amendment) “Capital Disclosures”,
the Group now reports on its capital management objectives,
policies and procedures in each annual financial report. The
new disclosures that become necessary due to this change are
detailed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” is mandatory for
reporting periods beginning on 1st January, 2007 or later. The
new standard replaces and amends the disclosure requirements
previously set out in HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation and Disclosures” and has been adopted by the
Group in its consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2007. All disclosures relating to financial
instruments including the comparative information have been
updated to reflect the new requirements.

The first-time application of HKAS 1 and HKFRS 7, however, has not
resulted in any prior-year adjustments on cash flows, net income or

balance sheet items. Accordingly, no adjustments on prior years are

required.
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HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.3 The Group has not early adopted the following standards or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective as
at 31st December, 2007.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements®

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment -
Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations®
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury
Share Transactions®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes*
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction?
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HE-_ZZ+F+_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007
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2 R2007F3A1HRKZEHABZ
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3 R2008F1ATBESZEHRZ
FEHM AR

4 R2008F7A1HSRZBRHIBZ
FEFHAR AR

5 R2009F7AMBEZEHRZ
FEHMER
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.3 (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2007.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2008.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2008.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

Among these new standards and interpretations, HKAS 1 (revised)
is expected to be relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendment to HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

This amendment affects the presentation of owner changes in equity
and introduces a statement of comprehensive income. Preparers
will have the option of presenting items of income and expense
and components of other comprehensive income either in a single
statement of comprehensive income with subtotals, or in two
separate statements (a separate income statement followed by a
statement of other comprehensive income). This amendment does
not affect the financial position or results of the Group but will give
rise to additional disclosures. Management is currently assessing the
detailed impact of this amendment on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact
of the other new standards and interpretations but are not yet in
position to state whether they would have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 45 to 124 have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgment of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December each year. Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefit from its activities.

Minority interests represent the portion of the profit or loss and net
assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests that are not
owned by the Group and are not the Group's financial liabilities.

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
separately from the equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority interests are
presented separately in the consolidated income statement as an
allocation of the Group’s results. Where losses applicable to the
minority exceeds the minority interests in the subsidiary’s equity, the
excess and further losses applicable to the minority are allocated
against minority interests to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses. Otherwise, the losses are charged against the Group's
interests. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, such profits
are allocated to minority interests only after the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or business for
which the agreement date is before 1st January, 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary
at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1st January, 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill related may be
impaired (see the accounting policy below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or business for
which the agreement date is on or after 1st January, 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the relevant subsidiary or business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment loss.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent years.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or business, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the

normal course of business, net of returns and discounts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Service income is recognised when the services are rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time-proportion
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the buildings could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of the
lease, and other items of plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Buildings held under capital leasing agreements are depreciated over
their expected useful lives or over the term of lease, if shorter.

Depreciation on other assets is provided to write off the cost over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method at the following
rates per annum:

Buildings 2.5%
15%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%-20%
Motor vehicles 25%

Plant, machinery and equipment

The asset’s useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated income statement during the financial year in which they
are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties or the sale of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

Investments in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert
significant influence, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results, assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting except when the investment is classified as held for
sale (in which case it is accounted for under HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”). Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associate for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investments in associates recognised
for the year. When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. Such goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.
After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss
on the Group's investments in its associates. At each balance sheet
date, the Group determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in an associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being
the difference between the recoverable amount (see accounting
policy of impairment below) of the associate and its carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
relevant associate.

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred. Where the associate
uses accounting policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, adjustments are
made, where necessary, to conform the associate's accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate's financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method, and in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprise direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.

Impairment (other than goodwill and financial assets — see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment (other than goodwill and financial assets — see the
accounting policies in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Impairment loss is recognised as expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.

Where there is a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases. Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased assets.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased assets. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined
and reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the year in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the year except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the year in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st January,
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as expense in the year
in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if they meet the following recognition
requirements:

e demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product
for internal use or sale;

e the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

e sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available
for completion; and

the intangible asset can be reliably measured.

The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as expense in the year in
which it is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired (see the
above accounting policy in respect of impairment losses other than
goodwill).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
At each balance sheet date, financial assets are reviewed to assess
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based
on the classification of the financial asset.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of four categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out
below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant year. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate a shorter
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, and deposits) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial asset
below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment loss.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction cost (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial asset below).
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FESHBE(8E) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LRTE (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
DHEE (/&) Financial assets (Continued)
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Available-for-sale financial assets and other investments

Available-for-sale financial assets and other investments are non-
derivatives that are either designated to this category or not classified
as any of the other categories (set out above).

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial asset below).

For other investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, are measured at cost less any identified
impairment loss at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
asset below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indictors of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or it
becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as other investments,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-
for-sale investments, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objectives evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group'’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent years.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it
does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in consolidated income statement of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
year, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets, when a decline in the fair
value of the asset has been recognised directly in equity and there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount is removed
from equity and recognised in the consolidated income statement as
impairment loss. That amount is measured as the difference between
the asset's acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and its fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Reversals for investment in equity instruments classified as available-
for-sale are not recognised in the consolidated income statement.
The subsequent increase in fair value is recognised directly in equity.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for other
than those financial liability designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, of which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial liabilities held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings, amount due
to an associate, trade and other payables and bills payable are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.



e R RMIEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_ZZ+F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

FESHBE(8E) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
LRTE (&) Financial instruments (Continued)
TEL@BTA Derivative financial instruments

AEEERTLESRTIA(EIEEEE
HISMNBE S 4)) S HIE KRB © %
ENMET AR AFEERE  mTE
EERERBDWINERREHTA -

ER BT ERE 3R G ETEED B/
=8 BRATEEYH REREY
HRBINEBREF R o ML
BEEREEMARZIATFEEZDRER
HARERAFEELZEE - REXD
BIAER AR RERS ERRA Y AR
ERMNAERZ D ZER - RIZIHER
FEEY - Bkt - BIEEIHNEDRE
REENRBAFEARFIBHEIFER
B RRAER AT ERN B’
SMNERBATSIE 2R RER(CAR -
APIER G RELF - AREEB T
BYREHRIBEZITETA » %F0T
ETARERRKEEE 2 REESLR
FEEZSRAE BRITETART
BEZEFHIIERN G KEIRT E

7
s ©

HBEREXN

MBEERENRE BT EEEARERE
B TERRE REERZ RN E
RERER  ABEITARG TEER
HAEBER - 2BRZEH - WMAE
BB HMBER  ZERNQFEESR
THERBE 5 R EMREMRAAET
WO o MR FE 21T 3% HE R By B 35 T U
RE - ZREVREERRZEEERN
REBBRM THER o EIKEE AT
BAE - AR &R ERELE KA
By - BB B SCROE M BT IE R HERR o

The Group uses derivative financial instruments primarily forward
currency contracts, to hedge its exposure against foreign exchange
rate fluctuation. Such derivatives are measured at fair value regardless
of whether they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

There are three types of hedge relationships under HKAS 39,
including fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation. Hedges are classified as fair value
hedges when hedges are made to hedge against exposure to changes
in fair value of a recognised asset and liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment or an identifiable portion of such an asset, liability or firm
commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect
profit or loss. Alternatively, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges
when hedges are made to hedge against exposure to variability in
cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk of a firm commitment and could affect profit
or loss. The Group only has derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting and they are deemed as financial assets held for trading
or financial liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair values of such
derivatives are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group's policies applicable to that category
of asset. Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income
is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee and the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised
in profit or loss. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and recognise a collateralised borrowing
for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Retirement benefits costs and short-term employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are charged as expenses as they
fall due as detailed in note 36.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations
to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting year, that are unpaid at the balance sheet date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal years to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as
a component of tax expense or credit in the consolidated income
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
consolidated income statement items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.
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overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the assets’(disposal groups’) previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in note 3 above, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that year or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision
affects both current and future years.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting periods

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group's net carrying values of property, plant and equipment as
at 31st December, 2007 were approximately HK$251,197,000. The
Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of four to forty years, and
after taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method, at the rate of 2.5% — 25% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment are
available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group places
the property, plant and equipment into productive use reflects the
directors’ estimate of the years that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional allowance may be
required.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting periods
(Continued)

Research and development activities

Careful judgment by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may be subject to
future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments
are based on the best information available at each balance sheet
date. In addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new products is continuously monitored by the
Group’s management.

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 15, the investment properties were revalued at
the balance sheet date on an open market value existing use basis
by independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the judgment, the
Group considers information from current prices in an active market
for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sales.
The management estimates the net realisable value for such finished
goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at each balance sheet date and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key source of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. As at 31st December, 2007, two subsidiaries
were subject to tax review by the Inland Revenue Department. The
directors are of the view that the Group will not be subject to any
further tax arising from this review other than the tax provision made
as at 31st December, 2007. However, where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

As at 31st December, 2007, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$14,335,000 in relation to unused estimated tax losses has been
recognised in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year in which such a reversal takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the bank borrowings and
equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings
as disclosed in the note 28, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Group, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. As a part of this review, the management of the Group
considers costs of capital, its bank covenant obligations and the
risks associated with issued share capital and will balance its overall
capital structure through the drawn down of bank borrowings,
the repayment of existing bank borrowings or the adjustment of
dividends paid to shareholders.

The management of the Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net borrowings
divided by equity. Net borrowings is calculated as total bank
borrowings less bank balances and cash. Equity includes all capital
and reserves of the Group.

The Group is subject to a gearing ratio convenant of not more than
85%, as defined, under certain bank revolving credit facilities. The
Group was in compliance with this covenant as of 31st December,
2007. The gearing ratios as at 31st December, 2007 and 31st
December, 2006 were as follows:

31/12/2007  31/12/2006

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e T Shareholders' equity 738,276 675,449

RITER Bank borrowings 216,488 466,354

SRR NI S Bank balances and cash 195,846 246,527

ECFH Net borrowings 20,642 || 219,827

BARBELE Gearing ratio 2.80% 32.55%
RITER Bank borrowings

2 HA Short-term 92,148 272,987

KH Long-term 124,340 193,367

216,488 466,354

AEBERREREEL  DERRE
ABELE - AR ELE 2 BET
WL P Al — (BRI A A B (R LR
MRS BRA - EAERSRERE
TR TR B AR -

The Group has honoured its covenant obligations, including
maintaining gearing ratios. The decrease of the gearing ratio is due
to repayment of certain bank borrowings using the positive cash flow
or bank deposits during the year in order to maintain a lower gearing
ratio and reduce finance costs.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, other investments, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and bank borrowings, trade and other payables, bills
payable, derivative financial instruments and amounts due from/
to associates. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments,
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk, and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Group does not have written
risk management policies and guidelines. However, the board of
directors meets periodically to analyse and formulate measures to
manage the Group's exposure to different risks arising from the use
of financial instruments. Generally, the Group employs conservative
strategies regarding its risk management. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group's foreign currency assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), United State Dollars
("US$") and Japanese Yen (“JPY"). These currencies are not the
functional currencies of the group entities to which these balances
relate. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from the
movements in the exchange rates of these different currencies against
the functional currencies of the group entities. The Group manages
its foreign currency risks by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates and will consider entering into foreign currency
forward contracts or other instruments to hedge significant foreign
currency exposure when necessary.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, foreign currency denominated financial

BIRIERIRER B - ST ¢ assets and liabilities, translated into HK$ at the rates, are as follows:
2007 2006

SREE SHEE FERE CREE tHERE FERE

Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net

assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure

BRI BRI BETT BETL BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ARE RMB 8,870 (30,195) (21,325) 6,370 (27,668) (21,298)
H JPY 8,700 (26,385) (17,685) 17,007 (22,182) (5,175)

K%IE%@%/\E%&E%%Z@

o TREJIAKBEZHREEDN - &
I"*ﬁfﬁ““)\ﬁ%&ﬁlﬁﬁén apslle
BENRE3% » MATH R E 8RR
3% RMEEERABRNBPREIN
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The Group is mainly exposed to RMB and JPY. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity analysis. The analysis assumes a 3%
increase and decrease in RMB and JPY against the HK$, with all other
variables held constant. 3% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates until the next balance sheet date.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 3% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes external loans where the denomination of the loan is in a
currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit after taxation
and accumulated profits where HK$ strengthens 3% against the RMB
and JPY. For a 3% weakening of HK$ against RMB and JPY, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit after taxation
and accumulated profits, and the balances below would be negative.
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6. BEMREEEEZERBEK (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

iR () Market risk (Continued)
EHE R () Currency risk (Continued)
AREzEE HEz&E vy
RMB Impact JPY impact Total impact
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
BETT BB BETT BB BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
MBEF  Profit after taxation 640 640 (i) 531 155 (i) 1171 795

() JBEEEE Q}‘Ef‘iﬂiﬂ%ﬁ’% l/\E‘ﬁZ
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(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on RMB
receivables and payables at year end in the Group.

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on JPY
payables at year end in the Group.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to bank
deposits and variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 28 for details of
these borrowings). It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group's interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For variable-rate
bank borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding
for the whole year and the assumed change in interest rate exists
throughout the year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease to the
HIBOR is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31st December, 2006.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

iR () Market risk (Continued)
FIEE Rz () Interest rate risk (Continued)
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If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for
the year ended 31st December, 2007 and accumulated profits as at
31st December, 2007 would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$2,165,000 (2006: increase or decrease by approximately
HK$4,537,000).

Price risk

Certain of the Group's available-for-sale investments are investments
in listed equity securities and measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the price of the respective equity instruments had been 10% higher/
lower, the investment revaluation reserve as at 31st December, 2007
will increase or decrease by approximately HK$13,000 (2006: Nil) as

13,000 L (ZFZ/RF + 8) » I IER a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.
AHEERE A TFEESBAHK -
EERE Credit risk

R-FTLE+-A=+—B BXS
817 A AR BRATEAE T AR
BRAHEENAEBRAREAR
UTHBIRE & AR RRSMAE 2 &

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties or debtors is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets

H1E : as stated below:
2007 2006
BET T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
5 REM R Trade and other receivables 621,376 755,624
SRITHEBR NI Bank balances and cash 195,846 246,527
817,222 1,002,151
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, where available at reasonable
cost, the Group uses an external credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit and defines credit limits by customer.
Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed periodically.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit insurance,
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 31% (2006: 20%) and
68% (2006: 44%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the EMS business segment. However, these customers are
industry leaders or multinational customers with solid financial
background and with good creditability, the management considers
there is no significant credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

None of the Group'’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements except for certain trade receivables which were
covered by credit insurance.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31st December, 2007, the Group have an
aggregate available unutilised overdrafts and bank loan facilities of
approximately HK$1,089,487,000 (2006: HK$971,268,000).

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group's financial liabilities have
contractual maturities which are summarised below:

31st December, 2007

BDEA JEENEE

Current Non-current
&% MER
BmER BRER
—&FR After one After two
Within but within but within
one year two years five years
BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 KA MRS Trade and other payables 700,601 - -
ENES Bills payable = = =
JE T — I & A B FUR Amount due to an associate 3,183 = =

TEERMTA Derivative financial

instruments - - -
BITEK Bank borrowings 99,093 80,546 49,857
802,877 80,546 49,857
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M EREEREREE (&)

RBETER (&)

HE-2RPEAREzERAE 2
HfERLEMT

—FFREToA=TA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

This compares to the maturity of the Group's financial liabilities in the
previous reporting period as follows:

31st December, 2006
BPEA FeEnEA
Current Non-current
—F% ME#
BWER BRER
—FR After one After two
Within but within but within

one year two years five years
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 REMERERR Trade and other payables 738,658 - -
NES Bills payable 3,386 = =
A — Pl & A A1 RUR Amount due to an
associate 7,008 - -
TESBMTA Derivative financial
instruments 1,422 - -
PITEK Bank borrowings 284,966 76,275 130,968
1,035,440 76,275 130,968
L& 4R A RERRIR 2R E The above contractual maturities reflect the undiscounted cash flows,

3
#EE - R ENGEERZAEZREE

BRI cEMEERABEZIME

RZEZLFE+_A=T—HAER=ZF
ERNF+_A=+—HERZAKEZ
CREERAEBEZRAEBNZ AR
D 2RMFEINER SR T A
TEHRE S -

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

which may differ to the carrying values of the liabilities at the balance
sheet date.

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as
recognised at 31st December, 2007 and 2006 may be categorised
as follows. See note 3 for explanations about how the category of
financial instruments affects their subsequent measurement.



e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. MBEREERSEREEE)

BERES cEMEERABEZIME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

(#8) (Continued)
2007 2006
BT T FEHETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
B ERARK Loan and receivables:
g NI OE] Amounts due from associates 63,145 90,757
AHHESREE ! Available-for-sale financial assets:
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 168 162
HEMixE Other investments 4,688 7,792
68,001 98,711
REEE Current assets
BN ERBRR Loans and receivables:
B 5 N E b U ER R Trade and other receivables 621,376 755,624
IRITEEF RIS Bank balances and cash 195,846 246,527
817,222 1,002,151
REBAE Current liabilities
HEERAGTECSMEE Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost:
B 5 Rk E AT BRFK Trade and other payables 700,601 738,658
ENEE Bills payable - 3,386
FEAS —[E B & A B FUR Amount due to an associate 3,183 7,008
RITEN Bank borrowings 92,148 272,987
BBRENHEER AT EBEFTEZ Financial liabilities at fair value
TRIEE : through profit or loss:
PTESRTE Derivative financial instruments - 1,422
795,932 1,023,461
FRBERS Non-current liabilities
BEEK AT EZSREE Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost:
RITER Bank borrowings 124,340 193,367
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Wz

Was (DA E 2 &5 58) IEA KB E
TINAEF 2 8 fm B W S U FRERR
RE R -

X¥RESE
EBDE

MEEDERBRME © AEED AME
LB ERFY —EMS* BT Em & ODM** &
TEM  hEPFIAEREBBRBFEER
DEER 2 B -

EEEFHIT

EMS & FEm — BEMS BAF 88 K& D
BFEm°

ODMETEm — AODMBEIRERE
MR THISHE -

*  EMSIEE FRUEMRTS

**  ODM 5 R EE i 7 2% M &

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

REVENUE
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the amounts

received and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less returns and discounts.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management segment reporting purposes, the Group was
organised into two operating divisions — EMS* electronic products
and ODM** electronic products. These divisions are the basis on
which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

EMS electronic products — manufacture and distribution of electronic
products for EMS customers.

ODM electronic products — original product development and
marketing for ODM customers.

* EMS denotes electronic manufacturing service

**  ODM denotes original product development and marketing
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8. XKER#EDE (&) 8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(Continued)
EL S A¢ ) Business segments (Continued)

WEXB D BERZ5T -

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

—EELE 2007
EMS ODM
il 8P H At EpPg
EMS ODM Other AAE HisH o)
division division divisions* Unallocated Eliminations Consolidated
BETT BETT BT T BT T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
s Revenue
HNEREHE External sales 3,358,686 5,091 = = - 3,363,777
PR HHE Inter-segment sales = = - - - _
fazs Total 3,358,686 5,091 - - - 3,363,777
£ Result
R EST Segment result 102,006 (26,069) (1,056) 74,881
APBEERL Unallocated corporate
expenses (29,521)
FISBA Interest income 5,009
ADEEAMBA Unallocated other income
RATEFE and net fair value gains
Wizs 52,131
RERKA Finance costs (22,850)
FE(RBEE AEIZELS  Share of results of
associates - (1,170) - 3,469 2,299
BR T AR A Profit before taxation 81,949
1B Taxation (11,081)
REE Profit for the year 70,868
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007 89
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8. X¥KkitESE (&)

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(Continued)
EL S A¢ ) Business segments (Continued)
—EELHF 2007
EEEEBR Balance sheet
EMS ODM
il B HitZprss
EMS ODM Other AR )
division division divisions#  Unallocated  Consolidated
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
NEBE Segment assets 1,173,128 2,546 12 = 1,175,686
REES AT 2R Interests in associates 200 1,688 73,208 = 75,096
PEEE Corporate assets 428,710
GREERS Consolidated total assets 1,679,492
af Liabilities
HHEBE Segment liabilities 561,427 510 = = 561,937
TEEE Corporate liabilities 379,279
HeaEes Consolidated total liabilities 941,216
Hitrg s Other information
BEER Capital additions 49,277 8,643 75 44 58,039
e REHERY Depreciation and amortisation
expenses 59,152 10,469 21 8,965 78,607
Hip & 2EHR  Impairment loss recognised in
REEE respect of other investments - 3,104 - - 3,104
FIZMAER 2 Impairment loss recognised
ERRAEES in respect of development
costs capitalised - 1,696 - - 1,696
—REE DAl Impairment loss recognised in
HEZBER respect of goodwill of
REEE an associate - 1,990 = = 1,990
RERE Allowance for doubtful debts
— B85 RAM ~ trade and other receivables
FENCR X 306 - 10 6 322
— By ERE] — amounts due from
IE associates - 48 - 888 936
HEWME  BER  Loss (gain) on disposal of
REEE property, plant and
(hezz) equipment (81) 819 = (5) 733

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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8. X¥KkitESE (&)

8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(Continued)
EL S A¢ ) Business segments (Continued)
—EBETRF 2006
EMS ODM
il il HitrZpre4
EMS ODM Other KAE b g8
division division divisions# Unallocated Eliminations Consolidated
BRI BETT BT T BT T BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
s Revenue
INERSHE External sales 3,708,348 3,405 2,031 = - 3,713,784
N EHEE Inter-segment sales = 2 = - 2) =
HakE] Total 3,708,348 3,407 2,031 - ) 3,713,784
4 Result
NEEE Segment result 150,299 (17,753) 3,418 135,964
ROTEEFSL Unallocated corporate
expenses (45,406)
VN Interest income 3,951
AABEMBA Unallocated other income 16,890
BB KA Finance costs (26,867)
SIAREHE 2 Impairment loss
BEZBHR recognised in respect
ZREEE of asset classified as
held for sale (8,795)
FE(REEE AEIZELS  Share of results of
associates - - 3,473 (947) 2,526
BRBE A& A Profit before taxation 78,263
1B Taxation (16,320)
REE Profit for the year 61,943

EXBHRRZRZBARAESTERE
ZAERT BT ©

The transactions with inter-segments were carried out at the
estimated market prices determined by the Company’s directors.

WONG’S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007 9 1



92

e R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZTTELF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

8. X¥KkitESE (&)

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(Continued)
EL S A¢ ) Business segments (Continued)
—EBETRF 2006
BEBER Balance sheet
EMS ODM
BP9 8PS HitEpra#
EMS ODM Other AAE g8
division division divisions#  Unallocated  Consolidated
BT T BETT BRI BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
NEBE Segment assets 1,569,145 8,656 32,433 - 1,610,234
REES AT 2R Interests in associates 200 4,897 106,380 = 111,477
PEEE Corporate assets 188,835
REEERSE Consolidated total assets 1,910,546
af Liabilities
ARG Segment liabilities 639,291 220 1 - 639,512
== =1 Corporate liabilities 595,585
LeaBERRn Consolidated total liabilities 1,235,097
Hitrg s Other information
BEER Capital additions 51,661 8,597 32 23 60,313
e REHERY Depreciation and amortisation
expenses 52,009 13,093 12 9,041 74,155
REKARERML Impairment loss recognised in
Z BHERRE respect of development
&8 costs capitalised - 753 - - 753
RIREE Allowance for doubtful debts 632 6 = = 638
HEWE  WER  Loss on disposal of property,
FtEER plant and equipment 424 56 = 14 494

# HuBPIeREEREE (L TEEEMS
K ODMEfm) °

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

# Other divisions included sales of goods other than EMS and ODM

products.
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8. X¥KkitESE (&)

hESE

TREHAEERWETIHE D 2 HE
DT (TE B E MR 2 RIR) :

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(Continued)

Geographical Segments

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods or
services:

RETHE 2 2 HE WS
Sales revenue by
geographical market

2007 2006
BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000

EEMN (BHEERE - 2EFRINEKX)

DM (BfEFEARKNE
(B RBEA - FBRIN

BUM (B30AE - B - 5 KRB

)

North America including USA,

Mexico and Canada 425,580 704,544
Asia including the People’s

Republic of China (“PRC") and

Japan other than Hong Kong 1,895,771 1,751,163
Europe including France, UK,

Finland and Germany 323,025 561,693
Hong Kong 719,401 696,384

3,363,777 3,713,784
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8. X¥KkitESE (&) 8. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
(Continued)
ED () Geographical Segments (Continued)
AR EREEMEROITZ D EEE The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets
ERES 5  URISARME - MEREE and additions to property, plant and equipment and development
MHRZERARE R 2 2T ¢ costs capitalised, analysed by the geographical areas in which the

assets are located:

BAE - BERRER
BB A EARL
PEEEZ Additions to property,
IRESE plant and equipment
Carrying amount of and development
segment assets costs capitalised
2007 2006 2007 2006

BETR  ARTIT  BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

EEM (BIEER - North America including USA,

EE R INEX) Mexico and Canada 11,765 36,090 8,536 6,642

M (BERE R Asia including PRC and Japan
=N 53 ) other than Hong Kong 437,403 534,472 20,021 16,608

BUM (B35 AR Europe including France, UK,
HE - SR MER)  Finland and Germany 5 270 - =
BB Hong Kong 871,515 1,149,152 29,482 37,063
1,320,688 1,719,984 58,039 60,313

9. BMERE 9. FINANCE COSTS

2007 2006

BETRT  ARTRT
HK$'000 HK$’000

BARAFRNEHEEZ Interest on bank loans and
RITERRBER 2L overdrafts wholly repayable
N SHRC AT AR within five years and carried at
amortised cost 22,850 26,867

94 TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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10. BRFLADRF 10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

BRI A TR HIRR (REA) -

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

2007 2006
BET T BT TT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Z SR & Auditors’ remuneration

REEZ Current year 2,214 2,184

EFRAE GRR) T2 (Over) under provision in prior years (143) 425
EE=ME (Wit 11@) &K b)) Directors’ emoluments

(notes 11(a) and (b))

e Fees 600 570

EREMNE Management remuneration

EAXFHE Basic salaries, allowances
ERL R BYIE A and benefits in kind 9,352 8,988
FTEIEAL Discretionary bonus 2,400 2,400

RIRFEFIFT B AR Retirement benefits
schemes contributions 42 48
12,394 12,006
BT Staff costs (including directors’

(BREEXHEEZEEHE) emoluments disclosed above) 294,109 263,843
EEE Severance payment 3,207 449
B BEMEERBRA 2 KR Less: amount capitalised to

development costs (6,553) (6,844)
STASRE a2 B Amount charged to the consolidated
income statement 290,763 257,448
e Depreciation 68,082 61,475
B BEEMEEREKARZ EER Less: amount capitalised to
development costs (343) (410)
ST ARG a2 R Amount charged to the consolidated
income statement 67,739 61,065
HEMZE R EHERS Operating lease charges
on rented premises 10,676 10,485
B EE S i (Bt aE) Research and development
expenditure (note) 10,414 8,522
B BEMEERBER AR 2 5K Less: amount capitalised to
development costs (8,185) (8,109)
FTASRE W a2 B Amount charged to the consolidated
income statement 2,229 413
RERI Allowance for doubtful debts
in respect of

— B 5 MEMEUERIK — trade and other receivables 322 638

— PEUSESE & N A RIA — amounts due from associates 936 =
HEWZE - BE k&2 BB CFRE) Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment, net 733 494
i H —FE B2 BEEM B A 72 e Gain on write off of a deregistered
subsidiary (345) _
B 5 N E b SRR 2 MisE Write off of trade and other payables (5,598) (10,606)
RN Exchange gain (2,068) (7,820)
HEWATRE Gross rental income (1,610) (1,694)
Ve Less: Outgoings 369 74
HEW A FRE Net rental income (1,241) (1,620)
Kzt : B 8 T kAN B 20 18 4 78 K Note: Included in research and development expenditure was an amount of
6,553,000 C( =ZTZT N F: B approximately HK$6,553,000 (2006: HK$6,844,000) relating to staff
6,844,0007T) B BIEEME A o costs.
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1. EEREEME 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(a) E=ENE (a) Directors’ emoluments
ENSEMNTFAB(ZEERF The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2006: nine)
NB)ESZMET - directors were as follows:
—BELHF 2007
HitEh <
Other emoluments
BEXEE
EER BIRER
BUER aH IR
Basic salaries, Retirement
EZ#WE  allowances BiETE4AL benefits ol e
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary schemes Total
fees in kind bonus contributions emoluments
BET T BETT BETT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Wong Chung Mat, Ben 50 2,744 400 12 3,206
Vi) Wong Chung Ah, Johnny 50 722 400 - 1,172
PR Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 50 1,936 400 6 2,392
BT Tan Chang On, Lawrence 50 1,321 400 - 1,771
Pafant: Wan Man Keung 50 1,719 400 12 2,181
TEH Wong Yin Man, Ada 50 910 400 12 1,372
TR Li Ka Cheung, Eric 100 = = = 100
i Yu Sun Say 100 - - - 100
EXE Alfred Donald Yap 100 - - - 100
ZZETLFEET Total for 2007 600 9,352 2,400 42 12,394
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1. ESREEME (E&) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) EE=M<E (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
—EERF 2006
Hitif &
Other emoluments
HERHS

EER BIKRBF

BEYEH FTEIHR

Basic salaries, Retirement
EEWE  allowances BETEA benefits B E
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary schemes Total
fees in kind bonus contributions emoluments

BETR BETR BETR BET R BET T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TR Wong Chung Mat, Ben 50 2,789 400 12 3,251
Vi) Wong Chung Ah, Johnny 50 723 400 - 1,173
BRFE Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 50 2,016 400 12 2,478
BHR Tan Chang On, Lawrence 50 1,286 400 = 1,736
S 5R Wan Man Keung 50 1,719 400 12 2,181
TEH Wong Yin Man, Ada 50 455 400 12 917
FRE Li Ka Cheung, Eric 90 - - = 90
ki Yu Sun Say 90 - - = 90
EXE Alfred Donald Yap 90 - - - 90
ZETNFET Total for 2006 570 8,988 2,400 48 12,006
HE_ZTLFER-_FTRF = No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in any
A=1+—HItFE  HMEEENE of the years ended 31st December, 2007 and 2006.
FEENEEAHE -

WONG’S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007 9 7



e R R M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

1. EEREEME (A) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) EEME (b) Employees’ emoluments
FA - AEEBREESHATE During the year, five highest paid individuals in the Group,
BRARFREEHITEEF(ZTTX four (2006: four) were executive directors of the Company
F:0%)  BEZHMESFBHR whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
X - HB—F(ZFETRF: — remaining one (2006: one) highest paid individuals were as
H)Ema AL ZHMESnT ¢ follows:
2007 2006

BETRT  ABTT
HK$°000 HK$'000

e MEADER Salaries and other benefits 1,945 1,396
RUNGTEIHK Contributions to
pension schemes 12 12
Wz MR T : His emolument was within the following range:
i
Range EEAE

B Bl No. of employee

HK$ HK$ 2007 2006
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 - 1
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1 -
REEBES e TESSEM No emoluments was paid by the Group to the directors or any of
At AL - ERRSIK the five highest paid individual as an inducement to join or upon
EINAREE 2 RESAERRERE joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
Bz e -
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BENSTAMIEFE 2 Bt ERBE R
BIHENT 5% HE - Rt AL AE B 2T
BEE R AR R ZRITHERAE -

RZZEZLF=A+ B FEARHE
MBIARZE AREMBEEFESESNT=
SRABM R E AR EAMB b EERFE
([#FBED - RZBEZELFE+ AN
B REBEBREAMIFEEE AR
BE_ZEZ\F—A—HE  HERE
MRS K E THIB AR ZFHEA33%
525% @ SR 15% &5 18% o

ETHEARERR50% 2 EFEFEF
o REBETBEBRAVE  WRTEZE
T A AR R B AR FEE1R
&2 B RN FEEMFRNEZT 2B
RENEEMEH  YERR=([EFE
R 50% °

12. Bi1E 12. TAXATION
2007 2006
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AMEH - Profits tax:
B Hong Kong
—RFEEF — current year 8,704 11,184
—EFERETE — under-provision in prior years 413 6,605
9,117 17,789
Hih AEE R Other jurisdictions
—AFE — current year 372 675
—EFEREBBTE — over-provision in prior years (366) (8)
6 667
EIERIE (FizE29) Deferred tax (note 29):
—REZE — current year 1,958 (2,136)
11,081 16,320

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for both years. Taxation for other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law") by Order
No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State
Council of the PRC issued Implementation Regulations of the New
Law. The New Law and Implementation Regulations will change the
tax rate either from 33% to 25%, or from 15% to 18% for certain
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008.

Certain subsidiaries are eligible for 50% exemption from Hong Kong
Profits Tax. Pursuant to the relevant tax laws in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries in the PRC are entitled to full exemption from Enterprise
Income Tax for two years starting from their first profit-making
year, after offsetting all losses brought forward, followed by a 50%
reduction for the next three years thereafter.
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12. ®i1E (&) 12. TAXATION (Continued)
AEFEFHIBYT A HEE W R 2R The taxation for the years can be reconciled to the profit before
Bl A SR EIEA T taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:
2007 2006
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRE A& A Profit before taxation 81,949 78,263
FRIB (AZHEFTS TR 17.5% 51 &) Tax at the domestic income
tax rate of 17.5% 14,341 13,696
REMEDEEERLE 2 Effect of different tax rates of
MEBARCMEERTE subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions 51 (3,854)
AR 2 Bl o & Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose 14,010 10,686
BERTMA 2 B2 Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purpose (4,977) (3,396)
DEFEEREDNR Under-provision in prior years 47 6,597
NERTBE R 2 FERIBEE Deferred tax asset in respect of
tax losses not recognised 3,522 2,115
RERBERGTE 2 ST 2 A% Adjustment for income tax on
concessionary rate (15,153) (9,529)
Hip Others (760) 5
AREE 2 FIE Taxation for the year 11,081 16,320
13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
2007 2006
BET T BT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Eﬁﬁtﬂ&ﬁﬁ&%ﬂ&%ﬁ% 0.017¢ Interim dividend paid — HK$0.01
(ZZZRF : B%0.027T) (2006: HK$0.02) per share 4,669 9,339
?’iﬁxffﬂiﬁﬂﬂn SAER0.02 7T Proposed final dividend — HK$0.02
(ZZZRF  B%0.037T) (2006: HK$0.03) per share 9,339 14,008
14,008 23,347
RERE B BB 0.02 T (== \¢ The final dividend of HK$0.02 (2006: HK$0.03) per share has
BH0.037T) BEFERIRN - AT been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
AR PR B R & A o shareholders at annual general meeting.
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13.

14.

15.

IRE (&)

F—ERFE 2 R ATREE0.03
(=TT RF: E¥0027L) ' At
75 ¥ 14,008,000 L (=TT R4 ¢ B
9,339,000 T) + BERAFE AL A& &K
o

BRAER

BREARFDHIBREBEAER 2 QA
BDFBEALAFEERMEGNOEE
70,868,000 ( Z T FE XN F: B K
61,943,0007C ) R A F R B B 17 &
i P2466,921,79408( = T T X F -
466,921,794 %) 2 BB TEK -

RR M EFEESERTEEEBR - &
I 25| SRE TR o

REMRE

AEBPAREEEHERE AREE
SHFERNRER G 2 MEE R LFFE
ME AR AFEERAGE D
BRRIEREDE -

13.

14.

15.

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

The final dividend in respect of previous financial year of HK$0.03
(2006: HK$0.02) per share, amounting to HK$14,008,000 (2006:
HK$9,339,000), was approved and paid during the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the Group's
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
of approximately HK$70,868,000 (2006: HK$61,943,000) and the
number of ordinary shares of 466,921,794 (2006: 466,921,794) in
issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share have been presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue in both years.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes or for both
are classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model.

BT T
HK$'000
ATEE FAIR VALUE
RZZEEZF—H—H At 1st January, 2006 23,770
RiFalmixER 2 A THEE Net increase in fair value recognised
N in the consolidated income statement 3,440
RZBZERF+-_A=+—HK At 31st December, 2006 and
2=t F—H—H 1st January, 2007 27,210
Wire &Rz AT EE Net increase in fair value recognised
FIE AN in the consolidated income statement 31,500
R=ZZ2tF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 58,710
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15. REWE (&)

AEBZEREMER_TTLF+=A
=t+—RAZATEEDNREREERT
RS 2 B & B R B EMERD Asset
Appraisal Limited 5% B 1T 2 (G E M
EETE ° Asset Appraisal Limited i &R
Be K8 AEEEMENENUY
X2 HEFBEEERKILES - HE
FEBIREEER - Hh2Emis LEU
M 2 XS ERIEMED ©

AEBREEME 2 S (AREREE
SE) AT

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st December,
2007 has been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that
date by, Asset Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited is a
member of the Institute of Valuers, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuations, which conform to International
Valuation Standards, were arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their carrying
amounts are analysed as follows:

2007 2006
BETRT  ABTT
HK$°000 HK$'000

REBFHERE - BHZRN505F

KPR (TNEIERS) BFEEE -
BHPR 50 F

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

In Hong Kong, held on leases

of over 50 years 54,740 23,810

In PRC (excluding Hong Kong),
held on leases of less than 50 years 3,970 3,400
58,710 27,210
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16. ¥1% - BENRE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

il

(TFBfEEHS)

U HEE

REBI  KBE2EF
hERE Buildings

BEZET in PRC BE -
Buildingsin  (excluding  H=ERRfE
HongKong  Hong Kong) Plant, FHREE
under under  machinery Furniture HE
medium-term  medium-term and and Motor Bt
leases leases  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BT T BB BETT BB BB BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAE cosT
RZZZ/E—HA—H At lstlanuary, 2006 62,452 25,441 555,725 134,852 9,706 788,176
R Additions - - 49,000 1,998 7% 51,794
HE /i Disposals / written off = = (1,683) (48) - (1,731)
N FEEE Exchange adjustment - 1,603 5,737 65 4 7,409
RZTERE At 31st December, 2006
+=-A=t-Hk and 1st January, 2007
I e = 62,452 27,044 608,779 136,867 10,506 845,648
A Additions - 12,644 18,019 17,985 863 49,511
HE /M Disposals / written off - - (9,951) (2,417) (893) (13,261)
SNE TR Exchange adjustment - 1,912 15,364 169 9 17,454
RZZEtHF At 31st December,
+ZA=t-H 2007 62,452 41,600 632,211 152,604 10,485 899,352
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007
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16. W% - BERZRE (&)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

R
(FEEES)
DGl ihh -
REBI  REZEF
hERE Buildings
BEZET in PRC BE -
Buildingsin  (excluding  #ERRME
HongKong  Hong Kong) Plant, FHREE
under under  machinery Furniture AE
medium-term  medium-term and and Motor &t
leases leases  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BT T BB BB BB BB BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZitE - BER ACCUMULATED
RERE DEPRECIATION,
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
RZZZF—H—H At lstlanuary, 2006 28,805 2,852 389,313 94,576 7,602 523,148
WAEEHR Charge for the year 1,826 1,330 52,521 4,759 1,039 61,475
HE /isH i Eliminated on disposals /
written off - - (1,190) (30) - (1,220)
SN GEEE Exchange adjustment - 100 1,961 27 3 2,091
RZZERE At 31st December, 2006
+-A=t-Bk and 1st January, 2007
“TZ+F—-H—H 30,631 4,282 442,605 99,332 8,644 585,494
IAEEHR Charge for the year 1,866 1,405 58,387 5,324 1,100 68,082
HE/MiEH4H Eliminated on disposals /
written off - - (9,090) (2,243) (893) (12,226)
N R Exchange adjustment - 309 6,410 78 8 6,805
R-BELE
+=A=+-H At 31st December, 2007 32,497 5,996 498,312 102,491 8,859 648,155
FREFHE NET CARRYING VALUES
R=Z2tE At 31st December, 2007
+=A=+-H 29,955 35,604 133,899 50,113 1,626 251,197
RZZERE At 31st December, 2006
+-A=1+-8 31,821 22,762 166,174 37,535 1,862 260,154

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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17.

18.

AMNEERIE

17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
2007 2006
BETRT AT
HK$"000 HK$'000

AEBEZANBEEFRBRE

EEENTFHHEERSE 2 it

ERE (T eREE) AT HEE
ALt

AR DA -

MBEE
FREBEE

REE ATz s

18.

The Group's prepaid lease
payments comprise:

Medium term leasehold

land in Hong Kong 77,495 79,433

Medium term leasehold land
in PRC (excluding Hong Kong) 9,669 9,445
87,164 88,878

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current asset 2,166 2,154
Non-current asset 84,998 86,724
87,164 88,878

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2007 2006
BETRT AR TT
HK$'000 HK$'000

FETHERR ZRERA

JEMRUR R 1R 7 R - HIBRE R R
712,175,000 7T
(ZZZ R4 : B%5,199,0007T)

FEHEEFE
RLER B TR IR UL

NP/ O]

FEWERE R BIFAREEN - B LE
BEERY - EFRA5 - BREZEQR
ZRER L BRI EREE B
—FREE  ABRFIGEERIERD
BE -ESRA BUBZERRZHA
ZEREEEA N TEERS -

Cost of investment in

unlisted associates 19,744 18,637
Share of post-acquisition profits and

reserves, net of dividend received

of HK$12,175,000

(2006: HK$5,199,000) (7,793) 2,083
Share of net assets 11,951 20,720
Amounts due from associates,

less allowance 63,145 90,757

75,096 111,477

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors,
no part of the amounts due from associates will be repayable within
one year from the balance sheet date and accordingly, the amounts
are grouped as non-current assets. The directors consider that the
carrying amounts of the amounts due from associates approximate
their fair values.

WONG’S INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED B Annual Report 2007

105



e R R M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZTTEF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2007

18. REEE N Tl 2% (1) 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

= ZZPOF FEYEE Dinastech Holdings
Limited if 2 4 2 B8 &8 % 1,990,000
TC RRIEETARRERAA c R
+F  BEREGERER 2 E AT 2R
HeBARREEHESTE

TX#I A EER S AR S BER
B

Goodwill of HK$1,990,000 arose from acquisition of Dinastech
Holdings Limited in 2004 and was included in cost of investment
previously. In 2007, full impairment was recognised in the
consolidated income statement with reference to the carrying amount
of the associate.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associates is set out below:

2007 2006
BETRT  ARTT
HK$°000 HK$'000

BARE

BE(RE)FHE
Yoz
RE i A

AREERETHEQREGZEIBBEH
NZEH 2 AR 2 IREFE  WAEE
RIFEREELEEHERNRIZEE -
sra=REla NI =l e 2 AR
RZABREMLBE DT CEF) BB

Total assets 198,299 295,183
Total liabilities (188,812) (296,422)
Net assets (liabilities) 9,487 (1,239)
Revenue 241,887 98,430
Profit for the year 37,181 5,561

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of result of
certain associates as the Group'’s share of losses in these associates
exceeds its net investments in these associates. The amounts of
unrecognised share of (profit) loss of these associates, extracted from
the relevant audited financial statements of associates, both for the

SR (FARZF)IAT year and cumulatively, are as follows:
2007 2006
BET T ST
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRREREN Unrecognised share of (profit) loss
BN aE CaF) Bia of associates for the year (9,318) 319
RETARMERIENS Accumulated unrecognised
BN Al e 1R share of losses of associates 17,019 27,651

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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18. REHE DB 2 () 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
N-ZEEL+FE+-_A=+—H ' A&EH As at 31st December, 2007, the Group had interests in the following
WA T F B A TR principal associates:

BRE
R Rz L B
EBRERES  gERE Fi#  Proportion of
Form of Place of 43 25l ownership
AREE business incorporation/ Class of interest EEEH
Name of company structure operation shares held %  Principal activities
EERTES/ FRO.01ET BREM - A
iz A BE Edik RIS 2 GRS
Dinastech Holdings Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 26.51  Developing technologies
("BVI") / Hong Kong shares of to support video services
US$0.01 each on broadband networks
BRE® 1T
BRIPAYE BB TR WERE
Ming Dragon Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 42.50  Property investment
shares of
HK$1 each
RS- FX(EM) AR EEERIHERK
TXERDA4 BBV ] 4,300,000 7T HEER
Solectron-Wong's (Huizhou) Incorporated PRC Registered 46.25  Manufacture of back
Industries Co., Ltd. # capital of panel pinning assembly
US$4,300,000
# HINEEDRE #  Sino-foreign equity enterprise
EERE TRV BEHE NG In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of
BERBRHITE At ERESIEZE associates will be of excessive length and therefore the above list
AEBXEENEEFEEEELE contains only the particulars of those associates which principally
EUNCIEE affect the results or net assets of the Group.
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19. AItHERE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

AHHERERE Available-for-sale investments comprise:

2007 2006
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000

LKA : Listed investment:

—RBEBAINETZ — equity securities listed

MRANFE 5 outside Hong Kong 126 =

FEEMES : Unlisted securities:

—IRARFE S — equity securities 42 162
#e Total 168 162
AR AT - Analysed for reporting purposes as:

FEMBEE Non-current asset 168 162

REZER - BRRSFAHEEEAR S
B2 EMBAKES - FAEAHEHE
REHEANFEBIER - ZFLWERE
ZRFBETRSEN RN S LR
ZBEMERE -

i3 AR A R B AR L 2 A
AEBRFHT 2 ETRABSZ B
& o HINEEH R AR E &
TR AN AT BENT ZEBE
X MARTZEERAMAT KB
HAFEE -

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

As at the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments are
stated at fair value, except for those unlisted equity investments of
which their fair values cannot be measured reliably. Fair values of
listed investments have been determined by reference to bid prices
quoted in an active market.

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in Japan. They
are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.
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20. HiiE 20. OTHER INVESTMENTS

EAhiRE B Other investments comprise:
2007 2006
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEEMES : Unlisted securities:
—IRARFEH — equity securities 7,792 7,792
W AR W a R MR R (B Less: Impairment recognised in
the consolidated income
statement (3,104) -
4,688 7,792

bt 3F EmRE RN S B S REMAIL
Z—EMAERBEITZIFLETRAR
%o ZRETDRXWMEBNMIFE © %
6 8- WNCIDSERI)-PNCIEI = 3 S a il
R % - RERETARERGEE
BZREFE  RERAEBEQFEERMA
APZBBAK  BREARBESFRA/E
NHEETRER SEHETE -

RZEZLF - 4788 3,104,0007T2
BEEIEENGRARER 2 EMIEE 2
BRESEIA T LARER -

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by a private entity incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The investments are held for strategic purpose.
The investee and its subsidiaries are engaged in the development of
wireless communication systems. The investments are measured at
cost less impairment at the balance sheet date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

In 2007, impairment loss of approximately HK$3,104,000 was being

recognised in the consolidated income statement with reference to
the carrying amount of the other investments.
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110

FE AN TR E £ MM 2 IR A
REREHE -

FRN - EEHRETEERNME ZFEK
ARIWERREERNz - ALRAEEBRZ
FAEKAETERE @ WHREE R
RIERA B 1,696,000 ( —ZZ X
4 : 7 753,000 T) 2 HHE o

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

21. BN ERERL 21. DEVELOPMENT COSTS CAPITALISED
BT T
HK$'000

RAE COST
RZETRE—H—H At 1st January, 2006 57,795
BN Additions 8,519
RZZBEERFE+—_A=1+—HK At 31st December, 2006 and

—ZTT+F—HA—H 1st January, 2007 66,314
IR Additions 8,528
R-EE+F+-"HA=+—H At 31st December, 2007 74,842
e REE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
RZEEXF—HF—H At 1st January, 2006 38,189
AN EHIRR Charge for the year 10,936
RERE W R NTER 2 Impairment loss recognised in the

B E R consolidated income statement 753
R-BTZRF+-_A=+—HEK At 31st December, 2006 and

—EE+F—H—H 1st January, 2007 49,878
RAREE R Charge for the year 8,702
Wire RN ERZ Impairment loss recognised in

B E 1R the consolidated income statement 1,696
R=ZZtF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 60,276
BRMEE CARRYING VALUES
R=ZBZtF+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 14,566
JJ_/Q\: == /_ﬂz—i—:ﬂ E+_ EI

At 31st December, 2006 16,436

The development costs are internally generated and are amortised on
a straight-line basis over a period of 2 years.

During the year, the directors identified certain development costs
capitalised have no future economic benefits. Accordingly, the
relevant development costs were considered to be fully impaired and
approximately HK$ 1,696,000 (2006: HK$753,000) was recognised as
a charge in the consolidated income statement.
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22,

23.

ZE 22. INVENTORIES
2007 2006
BT T ST TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 246,911 287,788
R Work in progress 48,518 34,136
IR n Finished goods 22,152 38,440
317,581 360,364
E 5 & H it AR . TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2007 2006
BT T BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEWE SRR Trade receivables 612,495 743,312
A REREE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (6,459) (6,461)
606,036 736,851
H b pEURBR TR Other receivables 15,340 18,773
8 5 R H M EW AR B Total trade and other receivables 621,376 755,624

AEBRTEEZIBERE ZHREHRZN
F30HEQBAFE - B I EUEEM
FE - B REMEWRI Z RS
TREZECREEZABANUAFE
B IREEEKARE - EAREHER
B2 RiteBrREAEZZET~E
j(o

AEBEZEREESEFNEESGERN
ERIEEEDREE - B EREZ B
BRI (INE) THAR 45 B 765 IR 2 sl 46 R A
RERTPZEERBENRERTRN T IARE
R F BEZREEBE T AR
R o AEEWER LS EHRT A TRAE
o ETEEERRREZBKE
SRR ©

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade customers mainly
ranges from 30 days to 90 days and no interest is charged. The
carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are considered a
reasonable approximation of fair value as these financial assets, which
are measured at amortised cost, is expected to be paid within a short
timescale, such that the time value of money impact is not significant.

At each balance sheet date, the Group's trade receivables are
individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables, if any, are recognised based on the credit history of
its customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances except for certain trade receivables which were
covered by credit insurance.
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23. ESRHEHMEWERM (&) 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
DNTRANEE ZEWE ZFRA (KR The following is an aged analysis of the Group's trade receivables (net
BREHE ) AR SR B Bl Z BRER AT of allowance for doubtful debts) at the reporting date:

2007 2006

BT ARETT
HK$°000 HK$'000

FEWE 5 8RR Trade receivables
0£60H 0-60 days 519,381 591,273
61£90H 61-90 days 72,948 26,574
#8383 90 H Over 90 days 13,707 119,004
606,036 736,851
o {th fE IR TR Other receivables 15,340 18,773
621,376 755,624
HEaHgORECERE SRR EZ H Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
AN AR FEEk 2 B AR o wide range of customers from whom there was no recent history of
default.
REE R B B B 5 A & & I & 1E Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with
TRESEREE ZCRAESELNS aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$77,848,000 (2006:
# 77,848,000 ( — B ;N F ¢ B HK$273,508,000) which are past due but not impaired at the
273,508,000 7T ) 2 EISA B BIREEARE reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
2 EUE DRGSR o loss.
@B RRE EUE 5 8RR R Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired were
BRIAT : as follows:
2007 2006
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
eI E 5 8RR Trade receivables
31%&60H 31-60 days 74,542 127,684
61%90H 61-90 days 2,255 28,117
@90 H Over 90 days 1,051 117,707

77,848 273,508

1 1 2 TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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23.

24,

B5 R HMABEWARR (&)

AREBEEHEE T D 2 P A B AR
REBIFEL AR - REBELR > AR
EEERYEEAZEH MENZEWE
faer - BERBMAELENSBHER MER
YRR EREE -

23.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are determined
not recoverable. Based on past experience, the management believed
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the remaining
balances as there had not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances were considered fully recoverable.

RERE2EE Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2007 2006
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F 2 R Balance at beginning of the year 6,461 6,887
BRI IER 2 BEBE Impairment losses
recognised on receivables 48 51
WisH AR Uk Bl 2 FIE Amounts written off as uncollectible (35) (477)
FAE W B I Amounts recovered during the year (15) =
FIR 2R Balance at the end of the year 6,459 6,461

RERERFED Y ABREREV SR
7 R BERL) B 48,000 L (ZFE
7NEE 51,000 7T) 2 FEUE RIS R
BEZER - ANEBEWERZEERT
BEMERR -

PTEERMIA

rEBZTESRIAEZ AP EBEFHE
LN

24,

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately
HK$48,000 (2006: HK$51,000) which have been or in severe financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s net fair values of derivative financial instruments were as
follows:

2007 2006
&E 8 BE BfE
Asset Liability Asset Liability
BETT BTz BT BT
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Current
INERHA L) Foreign currency
forward contracts - - - (1,422)

BROTETATREEE R A FEE
SRR - R ETAZ A FEERNEER
RETAZHRENEERE

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Their fair values are determined based on the quoted market
prices for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date.
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25. JIRAHHEZEE 25. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
2007 2006
BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—MYRAMEEEEE L Carrying amount of an associate
Bt AR 2 BREE classified as held for sale 14,796 14,796
W R WS RER ZREEE Less: Impairment loss
recognised in the consolidated
income statement (8,795) (8,795)
6,001 6,001
AHEEEEZFRNT ¢ Details of the asset held for sale are as follows:
£ i) A mERE
HEpX i 2 i 2h Fris REZE LL
Form of Place of B 15 28 5 Proportion of FEX7
NEEH business incorporation/  Class of ownership Principal
Name of company structure operation shares held interest activities
MAREATEZHEE &R s - BlER
BRAR(TARERD# iz Ava H 10,090,000 % 7T 2 $4 COMA F i
Nanjing Postel Incorporated ~ PRC Registered 33% Development,
Wong Zhi capital of manufacture
Telecommunications US$10,090,000 and distribution
Co. Ltd. (“Nanjing Postel ") # of CDOMA
handphones

# PIRERE

—FERFNR AEEE—FIE=
T EAEERBE AR —FEREXR

PEESRI L E B 0 Bt s
%&EIJE—H HEBE - R_TFTRF
TZA=1+—8 K2ZHIHENR

BREBHERRZZEAA  ERZE
EE 2 BRTE{E 1B Rk (B 4974 1 8,795,000
TL ° AR B Z KBRS EBUT
BRER DB RE - HAEE - HER
S HE - ANEE B RS 5 R BT
Rl 2 B - EERFRES — 5 BT
HREZHEE - AR S

114

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

# Sino-foreign equity enterprise

In August 2006, the Group had signed a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party regarding the disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in an associate — Nanjing Postel, and accordingly,
this interest has been classified as an asset held for sale. As at 31st
December, 2006, impairment of approximately HK$8,795,000 was
made against the carrying amount of the asset with reference to
the sale consideration per the agreement and the expected costs to
complete the transaction. The completion of the transaction is subject
to the approval of the share transfer by the local PRC government
authorities. Up to the report date, the Group has obtained approvals
from two local PRC government authorities and is now waiting for an
additional approval from another local PRC government authority to
complete the transaction.
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26.

27.

B 5 R HMEMNIRR

AT BANEEZ BN E 5 RN ¥R
HR 2 PRER AT -

26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the
reporting date:

2007 2006
BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

JERTE SRR Trade payables
0£60H 0-60 days 419,079 474,061
61290 H 61-90 days 75,607 37,601
@90 H Over 90 days 67,251 124,683
561,937 636,345
EfthfETBR IR Other payables 138,664 102,313
700,601 738,658

Z 5 NREMBEMNIERIETE - AREE
BEMZEESHNT30HE60H -

REEBEY  AKER_TTLF
TZA=1t—BZE S KEMEMNER
ZAHEERESZREERS °

FEfY — & A RFIA

RZEFRAREEN  RERERERE

CI

TA ©

REHEEIEE  EERA - B
AR 2 SOB Y REEEE AT EE

o

>t
i)

T

it

27.

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing. The credit period
on purchases of goods ranges from 30 days to 60 days.

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables at 31st

December, 2007 approximate to their corresponding carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of amount due to an
associate approximates its fair value due to short-term maturity.
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28. SRITER 28. BANK BORROWINGS
2007 2006
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITEX Bank overdrafts - 12,630
RITER Bank loans 216,488 453,724
216,488 466,354
BHEH Secured 216,488 354,204
Firidgigiii Unsecured - 112,150
216,488 466,354
AREBETEED PEBURERITE Certain of the Group'’s assets have been pledged to secure the bank
K(RMIFE3T) © borrowings (see note 31).
2007 2006
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRITEREEER - Bank borrowings are
repayable as follows:
——%F — within one year 92,148 272,987
—NTF—FEMF — after one but within two years 76,340 69,027
—NTREERF — after two but within five years 48,000 124,340
216,488 466,354
B HIRRENBE T A Less: Amounts due within one year
R—FREHEEZEH shown under current liabilities (92,148) (272,987)
R—FEREPEE ST Amounts due after one year 124,340 193,367
REBAGHAERER 2 Thae G AN The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
L EMEE 2 BENT than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out
below:
= EpH
JPY us$
R-BZEtLtE+=-A=+—H As at 31st December, 2007 44,785,000 1,500,000
RZZBERF+-_A=+—H As at 31st December, 2006 - 3,700,000
B Ll iRITER B ERFMERGFLHN All the above bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings with
TH1.53% % 6.55% ZFENFIEREFK © effective interest rates ranging from approximately 1.53% to 6.55%
FEBEE—2EAENETE - per annum. Interest is normally refixed at every one to six months.
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28.

29.

RITER (F&)
REEBH 2 ERERN R 2HBEMT ¢

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

date were as follows:

The range of effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet

FR - AKER
TLZFE K
447,882,000 7T °

EERA  RERTH
AFEERE -

R E

AT RAKEERZEBELERA(R

) BEARFRZAWE

B #4975 ¥ 210,646,000
CEBEERITERNBE

RITEH
Bank loans
2007 2006
B AR n B FE e
HK$ Jpy us$ HK$ JPY Us§
3.64%6.55%  1.53%-2.05%  1.53%-2.05%  4.55%-5.88% - 471%6.35%

of approximately HK$447,882,000.

approximates their fair values.

29. DEFERRED TAXATION

During the year, the Group obtained new loans in the amount of
approximately HK$210,646,000 and repaid bank loans in the amount

The directors consider that the carrying amount of bank borrowings

The followings are the major deferred tax (liability) asset recognised

by the Group and movements thereon during the year:

R
BIRTE fliat
Accelerated ~ AFEERE BIEER
tax Fair value Estimated ok
depreciation gain tax losses Total
BET T BETT BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZE R F— At 1st January, 2006 (2,509) (3,565) 2,544 (3,530)
RAREE ﬁﬁﬂﬁ(mﬁuﬂ\(?ﬂﬁ\) Credited (charged) to the
(it 12) consolidated
income statement
for the year (note 12) 2,819 (602) (81) 2,136
RZZFZREF-A=+—HK  At31st December, 2006 and
e S = Ist January, 2007 310 (4,167) 2,463 (1,394)
RAREEFENEE (MR)Et A (Charged) credited to the
(Wi 12) consolidated income
statement for the year
(note 12) (8,417) (5,413) 11,872 (1,958)
R=ZZtF+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2007 (8,107) (9,580) 14,335 (3,352)
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29.

30.

EERE ()

AT RIRFETIAREE B EM B s Ak
ZAH

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2007 2006

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BIEFIIEEE Deferred tax asset 2,642 1,884
BERIBEE Deferred tax liability (5,994) (3,278)
(3,352) (1,394)

RZZEZ+F+-_A=+—8  ~£H
A A DA 8 R 2R i ) 2 il T R E) A AR
15 548 49 78 £ 477,000,000 T ( — 2 Z
7N 4 ¢ 78 504,000,000 ¢ ) © ‘FL%FL
T8 & = 4978 5 82,000,000 7t ( =B Z /X
£ : 114,000,000 7T) B Btz S E 1R
TERR o FRPAFEETE AR A% I 2ROR -+
R FLER T 2 4978 # 395,000,000 7T (=
T TN 490,000,000 7T ) FE R
FEFTBEE - AP ZHREEIBEE
BRZZE——FRFRBEREEDY

At 31st December, 2007, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$477 million (2006: HK$504 million) available
for offsetting against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$82 million (2006: HK$14
million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining approximately HK$395 million (2006:
HK$490 million) due to the uncertainty of future profit streams.
Included in unused tax losses are losses in the PRC of approximately
HK$80 million (2006: HK$75 million) that will expire in 2012. Other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

75 ¥ 80,000,000 7T (=T /N F : B
75,000,0007T) - B EEN G &
PR ERASEE o
SN 30. SHARE CAPITAL
RHEE
Number of BT T
shares HK$'000
SREES0.10 T2 E Bk Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
SETERRAN Authorised:
RZZFETZRF—H—AQH" At 1st January, 2006 and
ZETRFRZZETLF 31st December, 2006
+—-—A=+—H and 2007 700,000,000 70,000
BT RBUB K - Issued and fully paid:
RZZEZRF—H—AQH" At 1st January, 2006 and
ZETERFRZZTLF 31st December, 2006
+—A=+—H and 2007 466,921,794 46,692
FRN - ANREREAMEANE R B Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

BA - HEXBLRARRQREMELTE
# o

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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31. EEER 31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

WEEBR  AEEREEZETYE At the balance sheet date, certain of the Group's property, plant and
BEEE&EE REMERBNHEER equipment, investment properties, and prepaid lease payments in
TH R T B 5 Bl 49 7% % 27,000,000 7T Hong Kong, with carrying amounts of approximately HK$27 million,
7% # 23,000,000 7T X 7 # 77,000,000 HK$23 million and HK$77 million (2006: HK$29 million, HK$7 million
TL(ZZ TS - A% 29,000,000 7T and HK$79 million) respectively were pledged to secure banking
75 #7,000,000 7T & 7 # 79,000,000 facilities granted to the Group to the extent of approximately HK$813
L) BEERBETAEENEY million (2006: HK$813 million).

813,000,000 0( — T T ;X F : B K&
813,000,000 7T) ZiEFTRE 2 M °

32. AiE 32. COMMITMENTS
REE R - NEBIREELE TTEHRE At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following commitments,
NP 2 AENT so far as not provided for in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of:
2007 2006
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) BEEYF BERZHEZ (@) Capital commitments
BRI contracted for in respect of

acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

—BEETRERR — contracted for but not
fre ISR B provided in the
consolidated financial
statements 27,934 422
— B — authorised but not
BRETLY contracted for - =
27,934 422
(b) BENAHEECHERTF (b) Operating lease commitments
KETREFTARBITZ for future minimum
H & &K S SRR lease payments
R TFIE AR E R - under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of
rented premises which fall
due as follows:
—&R Within one year 5,548 9,749
F_EFERF In the second to
(BREEREME) fifth year inclusive 3,085 6,830
8,633 16,579
KEHEFIEEASEREETETE Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
MEARN 2B o A RMESZTFHF certain of its office premises. Leases and rentals are negotiated and
A e B fixed for an average of two years.
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32. &¥E (&) 32. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
2007 2006
BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
() HEEEIAzBE () Future minimum lease payments
EMESHIA ¢ contracted with tenants:
—FR Within one year 656 673
FEZFRF In the second to fifth
(PREEEME) year inclusive - =
656 673
KEHERBREASBREAEREY Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the Group
¥l S o A NESEFHFES for leasing its investment properties. Leases and rentals are negotiated
—FEERERE ° and fixed for an average of one year.
33. AIRAE 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REER - NREEWEERERNAE At the balance sheet date, the Group did not have any significant
& ° contingent liabilities.
3. BEAERS 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
,iv?/.:.\ BF Rk E A i 5 4R FE < BAE A In addition to those related party transactions disclosed elsewhere
RSN » RARFER » NG F B H B in the consolidated financial statements, during the year, the Group
TLTTLATX% I ER SRR entered into the following transactions with its associates. The
EEETE AT THEET ° transactions were carried out at estimated market prices determined
by the Company’s directors.
2007 2006

BETRT AR TT
HK$°000 HK$'000

YA UA Rental income received 217 544
FEUT FES B A R 2 RIS N E 46 B The amounts due from/to associates are set out in the consolidated
IR BREAER - ZZFEFORIER balance sheet on page 46. The terms are set out in notes 18 and 27.

Bz 18 227 o
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35.

36.

EEREREE

Apmlz g BBkt 8l ([&at8l)) T3
R-ZEZZFHLA=THER  FEE
RETAEREER (BREARABHEM
MEBRRZEFMMITES  ARBRAA
AR YN SNl
R MER 2 AR B HERMMB AR
EARRITHAER - TEHEE) 25
B ZHEER -_E-ZTE+A=1H
B SR RS R B -

FERRE AT N Bl % FB AR AR th 15K P
HEZHETE  ETEREREHEH
REET 1 FHERR L AT 1045 - B8
PRI B IR 1 FRTTHE ©

BEZaTEl - AIERBEIT 2 RMDBE AR
NFRIEBTRAZ 10% ° (TEBEDY
AR L A (MEREER)
ZERARERAH2BRNDEME  RE
BER ) A EART A% ¥ A R FT S A R
BRZFHRME(UAESEAE) - B
BZETETEENMFENRMD 2EHE -
BHREHcBRERS N 2RERBE
107T °

B BRANET & DA SR S BB AR 4t 3l i R
1718~

RAKERGE

AEBRBEEBMBEEREBHR A
MRAESIE([AEeTE]) - RES
Tl EERAEBEEARARESR
NESHAHZTATE - XEERE
A% 1,00070 508 BHT K AR 5% 2 B
REMAERTEIER -

TEMNBARZEESTEBRNRILZ
BIREHEFEIZKE -

35.

36.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)
came into effect on 30th July, 2000 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible employees, including any executive
director of the Company or any subsidiary, and any senior executive,
officer or employee of the Company or any subsidiary employed to
render full-time or substantially full-time service to the Company or
any subsidiary. The Scheme will expire at the close of business on 30th
July, 2010.

An option may be exercised as specified by the directors in relation
to such option in its terms of grant which shall not be earlier than 1
year after its date of grant, nor be more than 10 years from its date of
grant. No option shall be exercisable earlier than 1 year after its date
of grant.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The exercise price must be at
least the higher of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be
a business day, and the average closing price of the shares as stated
in Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant. Under the Scheme, the
exercise price must not be below the nominal amount of the shares.
Consideration to be paid on each grant of option is HK$10.

No share options were granted or outstanding since the adoption of
the Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Fund
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the Fund Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes the lower
of HK$1,000 per month or 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Fund
Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC government.
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36. RKERGE (F)

ERTREMBARAZAAREAFH
7% ZE12% 7 B 2 B ZOR K&t 84
R ARZBARMNERES - RIZAM
BER - BEAZHRENRE ZER
e MRGFERFEIRARE - PRI
FRERKRET 2RKE -

FIABRE R B RERE 2 BKARANE
8,124,000 c( — TN F: B
8,002,0007T) * AAEBEFAMIMEFE
MEZ ST EIER 2 K

37. TEMBATE

R-ZEELF+_A=1+—HEZENE
NAEFHBEWT

36. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (Continued)

37.

The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to
the state retirement schemes in the PRC based on 7% to 12% of
the monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits.
The employees are entitled to retirement pension calculated with
reference to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government regulations. The
PRC government is responsible for the pension liability to the retired
staff.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement of
approximately HK$8,124,000 (2006: HK$8,002,000) represents
contributions payable to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2007 are as
follows:

BRRE
ERITEER R LA i
RAEE Proportion of RER-LA AL,
Nominal value  ownership interest Proportion =3
of issued HiE & of voting Place of
NG ordinary Directly Indirectly power held incorporation/ FE#K
Name of company share capital % % % operation Principal activities
¥ 1107 REBRXES REER
Catel (B.V.l.) Limited HK$110 100 - 100 BVI Investment holding
20,000,000 H SEN HERMSHE
Wong's International JPY20,000,000 100 - 100 Japan Sales and marketing
Japan, Inc.
HEER LA B2 BB REER
Bondwide Limited HK$2 = 100 100 Hong Kong Investment holding
27T BB MR
Luckyweal Company HK$2 = 100 100 Hong Kong Property investment

Limited

TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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37. TEMBERF (&)

R-ZEELF+_A=1+—HEZENE
NRFEBWT (&)

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2007 are as

follows: (Continued)

BRRE
ERITEER R LA i
RAEE Proportion of RERELA AL,
Nominal value  ownership interest Proportion =3
of issued HiE & of voting Place of
NG ordinary Directly Indirectly power held incorporation/ FE#K
Name of company share capital % % % operation Principal activities
KEEBEBRATR B2 Bt/ HE SUEETEM
Siu Wai Industrial HK$2 = 100 100 Hong Kong / Electronic products
Limited PRC manufacture
B2 B REZER
Wapdon Company HK$2 = 100 100 Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited
ERER (EM)
BRAR* 20,606,529 70 i ZEEFEM
Welco Technology US$20,606,529 - 100 100 PRC Electronic products
(Suzhou) Limited* manufacture
102,799,653 ¥ M4 T I REER
Wong's Circuits $$102,799,653 - 100 100 Singapore Investment holding
(Holdings) Pte Ltd.
FTREFARRAT #5#£1,000,000 7T B ZEEFEM
Wong's Electronics HK$1,000,000 - 100 100 Hong Kong Electronic products
Co., Limited manufacture
IRTX(KE)
BRARR FS#E 500 7T BB REER
Wong's Industrial HK$500 - 100 100 Hong Kong Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited
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37. T EMEB AT (&) 37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
R-ZEELF+_A=1+—HEZENE Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2007 are as
NRIFBEWT - (8) follows: (Continued)

BER
ERTEER Rz i Fis

RAEE Proportion of RERELH AL,
Nominal value  ownership interest Proportion =3

of issued HiE & of voting Place of
NG ordinary Directly Indirectly power held incorporation/ FE#K
Name of company share capital % % % operation Principal activities
et RIEBRAR
GRS Rt
7 1,000,000 7T 5 Edm
BroadMax Technology HK$1,000,000 - 100 100 Hong Kong Design and marketing

Limited of broadband and
internet appliances
products

M HERSH
5% 1,000,000 7T B EREAER
Emerging Technologies HK$1,000,000 - 100 100 Hong Kong Development,

Limited marketing and
distribution of
wireless
communication
products

10,0003 7T X SR
Wong's International Us$10,000 - 100 100 United States Marketing

(USA) Corporation of America

* R RRAREEINEBE - *  The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise.
EERA - TERIIIMEWB ARG In the opinion of the directors, a complete list of the particulars of
2ERBANILE - Bt ERAVIEE subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the above list
AEBEEREEFEFEATLE 2 contains only the particulars of those subsidiaries which principally
BRR] . affect the results or net assets of the Group.
T EF 42 R S 5 P A ] PR P A8 A2 BT /B 1 ) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at
BITEMGFE 2 ESES © the end of the year or at any time during the year.

1 24 TRER(EE)ERAT B — 2T HFFH
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